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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY

{Acompany limited by guarantee)
TRUSTEES REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financia! statements and auditer's report of the charltable
company for the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022. The annual report serves the purposes of both a Trustess'
report and a direciors' report under company law.

Shireland Collegiate Academy Trust's head office Is at Shireland Collegiate Academy. The Articles of Association enable
the Trust tc operate on a federal basis and to Include more than ane Academy.

Shireland Collegiate Academy Trust (S-CAT) is the legal entity, which governs three secondary academles, five
primary academies, one unlversity technical college, and two privete nurserles. Four primary, two nurseries and two
secondary academles are within Sandweli and the other secondary and primary academy Is within Dudley. We serve a
student popuiation of birth to year 13 (18-year- old’s).

The elght Academiss are Shireland Collegiate Academy, Thorns Collegiate Academy, West Bromwich Collegiate Academy,
Holyhead Primary Academy, Tamaside Primary Academy, Shirsland Technology Primary, Waltbrook Primary Academy),
Lightwoods Primary Academy. The one unlversty technical coflege is Shireland Biomedical who jolned the Trust Aprii
2022. Two nurseries are Tinywoods Nursery and Flrst Steps Nursery.

We have a fotal student population as of October 2022 of 4,842 students from a student capacity of 6,002. We
ars currently 829% full, as we have two free schools who are In thalr fourth year of operation and are growing, & university
technical coflege that has four vacant year groups, plus we are downsizing two primary schoofs due to low birth rates within
their local arsas.

Structure, governance, and management
. Constitution

Shireland Collegiate Acaderny Trust is a company limited by guarantee with no shere capital. It was incorporated on 7
August 2007 and was registered as a charlty on 6 February 2008. S-CAT is an exempt charlty whose Principal Regulator
is the Secretary of State for Education. S-CAT commenced operations on 1 September 2007,

The charitable company's Memorandum and Articles of Assoclation are iis primary governing documents. New articles
have been adopted in year (March 2022) to allow far the Jolning of the univarsity technical college. Members of the charitable
company are any origingl signatories of the Memorandum of Association wha are stili membars and any persons appointed
by Speclal Resoiutlon of the members

The new Adicles of Association state the Trust Board may comprise up to 7 Trustess appointed by the Members,
up to 2 Trustees appointed by the Trust Board. The board can also co-opted Trustees. Under sectlon 57 of the articles the
CEO of the trust is a Trustee.

The Articles allow the Trust to establish Local Governing Bodles for each Academy within its control. These Local
Governing Bodies are calied Standards and Performance Committess. Their role Includes the monitoring of the educational
performance of the Academies and the impiementation of policies agread by the Trust Board. The Standards and
Performance Commitleas each comprisa up o nine governors, which include trustees, {amily, and staff members.

The Trustees are directors of the charitable company for the purpeses of the Company law and Trustees tor the
purposes of charity leglsiation. The details of the Trustees who served throughout the year are Included in the

references and administrative detalls on page 1.
. Mambers' labllity

Each memnber of the chasitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charltable company inthe event of it
baing wound up while they ars a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be
required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and llabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

. Trustess’ indemnitles

Every Trustes, Govarmnor or other officer of the Trust shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Trust against any Habllity
incurred by them In that capacity in defending any proceadings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgemant is given In
tavour or in which they are acquitted or In connection with any applicatien in which relief is granted to them by the court
from liability for negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust In refation to the affairs of the Trust. The Trust has a
third-party indemnity In piace for all Trustees. The limit of the indemnity Is £5,000,000,
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST

A company Hrf I e

TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLST 2022 - CONTINUED

$Structure, governance, and management - continued
. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

Trustees are appointed to ensure the objects of the trust as set out In the Ardicles of Assoclation and Funding
Agresments ara adhered to.

Trustees are appointed for a 4-year period, except that this time limit does not apply to the GEO who Is appointed as part
of holding this office under the Arlicies of Association.

Subject to remalning eligible 1o be & particular type of Trustes, any Trustee can be re-appointed of re-
elected.

Any individual wishing to become a Trustes is asked to attend an induction Interview with sither the Chalr of the Board, the
Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary and compiste a skills mafrix. On the basis of this induction mesting
and skil matrix the Trustee's appointmant is then elther endorsed by the Board or the Members as appropriate or rejected.

All Trustees are asked to complete an Inventory of thelr skills and experlence periodically thereafter. The
resulting overall profile of Board and Commitee expertise enables Trustees and members to appoint persons
who will ensure that the Board can discharge Its duties efficlently and effectively.

The Board has continued this year to use - Governors for Schools Service, Inspiring Governance, and the National
Governance Association, to help with recruitment and ensure that any skills gaps that have been identified can be
filled accordingly.

. Policies and procedures adepted for the induction and training of Trustees

Technology Is central to the Trust governance structure. To ensure the best use of Members, Trustees and
Governors time wa alm to make ali tralning and informatlen as accessible as possible and easy to understand. To achieve
this, we use an online governance environment which all Members Trustees and Governors are required to use. Each
Member/Trustee/Governor on appointment is issued with guidance on its use and are directed to the induction area on
this environment.

We require ali Members/Trustees/Governors to undertake compulsory Induction trabning plus on an annual basls
mandatory training which is supptemented by other training linked to their skills analysis. The skills analysls is reviewed
annually and mapped to the requirements of the Governors Handbook and Competency Framework.

In addition to the online support and fraining, &l new Membars, Trustees and Governors are offered a onedo-one
Induction meeting with the Assistant Company Secretary or Company Secretary. The training and Induction provided
for new Trusteas wil always include an opporiunity for a tour of the acadernies and a chance to meet staff and puplis.

Access to relevant policles and procedures, mesting agendas, Board and Committes minutes are avallable in
real time by using the onfine governance portal,

The Trust’s tralning plan over and above the mandatory training, Includes opportunities for face to face, home lsarning
and cn-line learning sesslons. Before every meeting some kind of training Is made avallable plus we provide a bank of
tralning resources from the National Governance Association.

The Trust Is a member of The Key, which holds a wealth of information and support and also has links with 8GOSS which
have a governance suppert structure,

This year the training has Included, for Trustees: Compliance, Key Functions of the Governing Body, Health & Safety
{Estates & Responsibilities, Assurance & Fraud, White Paper Summary, Ofsted Readiness, GDPR, VMF1, Stakeholder
Engagement, Succession Planning and for the Standards and Performance Committess (Local Gaoverning  Body)
Changes to the Ofsted Inspection Handbook, Ofsted Readiness, Ofsted Inspections (step by step), GDPR, Safeguarding,
Pupll Premium, Primary Assessment, Governance — your role , responsibilities and organisation.

in addition to the in-year trainlng courses, the governance poral has been regularly updated so thal Members,
Trustess and Governors can be informed of national devefopments in education and related legislation,

Members, Trustees and Governors are all encouraged to visit the Trust and Individual academy webslte as often as possible
due to the wealth of information available.

At the end of each year, we review the training programme. This information is used to plan future tralning activities.
The review at the end of this year has asked for more support for training on OFSTED, Safeguarding & SEND and the
Impact of the eurriculum
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SHIRELAND EOLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST
{A company Himited by guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 - CONTINUED

Structure, governancs, and management - continved

. Organisational structure

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring compliance with the Trust's dutles under company and charity law and any
agreaments made with the DIE, In particular the Funding Agraements, for setting the strateglc direction of the Trust and
making major decisions about the direction of the Trust.

fo discharge these duties Trustees, approve, on an annual basis structure, pollcies development plans and budget and in
year monitor the implomentation by the use of finandlal, education and operaffonal data. They also agree annually a
Governance Structure and a Scheme of Delegation at the first meeting of the Board of Trustees in the autumn
tarm.

Trustees are actively encouraged to propose ways In which the governance arrangements can be improved to
Increase the level and effectiveness of challenge and support.

The Governance structure establishes the overall framewark for the governancs of the Trust and determines membership,
terms of reference and procedures of Hs committees and other groups

The scheme of delegation states the responsibliies of the Board and the powers delegated to its committees the
Chief Executive Officer and other senior staff.

The Chief Executive Officer {CEQ} Is tha Accounting Officer.
‘The Board of Trusteas normally meet a minimurn of four times per year.

During the year under review, the Trust held in addition to the six Board meetings, three Resotrces Committes meetings,
thres Audit and Risk Committee meetings, two Remuneration meetings and three mestings of Shireland Learning Board
{the subsidiary comnpany). Plus, each SPC held 3 meetings, one per term.

The Trust's organlsational structure Is comprised of four levels, which ars, the:

Shiretand Collegiate Academy Trust Board of Trustess (including 3 supporting committess -  Resources, Audit and Risk
and Remuneration).

Academy Standards and Performance Committess (SPC) (Local Governing Bodies); Trust Strategy Team (TST); and
Senlor L.eadership Teams at academy level.

The aim of this structure is to give clear management accountablity that allows the relevant responsibliities to be
devolvad and encourage involvement in decision making at all levels.

The Trust Strategy Team (TST} conslsts of 6 staff: the Chief Executive Offlcer, the Finance and Operations Director,
Dlrector of Human Resources, Secondary Director of Safeguarding and SEND, Secondary Director of Education, Primary
Directar of Education.

These individuals have responsibility for the implernentation of decisions made by Shirgland Colteglate Academy Trust
Board in relation to any aspsct of the Academles’ management and organisation, in respect of the currdculum, financial
management, human resources and the development of partnership working.

The Trust Strategy Team meets to plan, deliver, and evaeluate the provision of the work of the Trust. This group
report on the Trust's overall performance at Board level,

Each Academy has a Senior Leadership team (SLT). SLT implement the strategy set by Board and TST within each
academy and report back on performance to TST.

Shireland Learning Limited (SEL} which is the trading subsldiary of the Trust have Its own Board of directors but adopt the
gavernance strutture and Scheme of Delegation from the Trust and as such the management organisation. SLL Is
expected to comply with all retevant Trust policies.
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST
Aco imited b I

TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 - cONTINUED

Structure, governance, and managaement - continuad
g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel are defined as the Trust Strategy Team and the Senior Leadership Teams of each
school. Trustees and governors ars not paid for thelr role, but in line with trustee’s expenses policy can claim
expenses insumed In relation to the discharge of their duties. Detalls of Trustees’ remuneration and expenses are
disclosed in tha notes of the flnancial statements.

The Trust Strategy Team are paid on the Trust's executive pay scale. The Ramuneration and Performance
Management Committes of the Trust Board determines the salary of those on the executive pay spine. The teaching
membars of staff folow the conditions of service for Leadership Posts and the non-teaching members fallow the
conditions of the Nationat Joint Counclt. All members of TST, in addition to thelr annual salary, have an element of

performance retated pay.

Principals who are nol members of the Trust Strategy Team are paid on Trust defined salarles and follow conditians of
service for leadership posts.

The senlor leadership team of each academy are pald in line with the current nationsl pay scales for teaching staff

and in accordarice with the Teachers' Pay and Conditions Document, non-teaching members of staff are paid in
line with the natlonai NJC pay scales and NJC terms and conditions.

h. Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials
Numnber of employges who were refevant union officials during the year o
Full-time equivalent employee number

Percentage of time spent on facllity time

0% 0

1%-50% i}
51%-99% D

100% 0
Percentage of pay blll spent on facllity tima

Total cost of facility thme O

Total pay bilt 26,402 414
Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time 0%

Paid {rade union activities
Time spent on pald trade union activities as & percentage of total paid 0%
facility time hours

i. Related partles and other connected charlties and organisations

Shireland Coliegiate Academy Trust is the scls member of Shireland Learning Limited (SLL), acompany
fncorporated In England (reglstration no, 08052022), As reported In the audited accourts for the year ended
31 August 2022, SLL mads a profit of £0 (vear ended 31 August 2021: £105,782). The total profit has been gifted
back to the Trust for use asross our academies in line with SLL Arficles of Assoclation.

SLL makes donations and contributions to support particular projects and facifities of the Trustand lis puplls
and is therefore treated as a related party of the Trust for the purposes of the flnanclal statements.

SLL provides an E learning school improvement function and back-office support for Finance and HR administration.
Detalis of the transactions are disclosed in the notes to the financial statement.

SLL had a connected party refationship with Cogcote Limited up to 17 Novembar 2022 when it was agreed by the
Board of StL for Coscole to be dissolved by aflowing Groupca!; to take ownership of SLL shares (27%; In return for a
seftlement of £10,000 and unlimited access to the inteflectual property rights.

Any services provided in this period by Coscole has been free of charge.
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantes}

TRUSTEES' REPQRY FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 - cONTINUED

Structure, governance, and management - continued
. Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The Teust's policy Is to consult and discuss with employees, through unions, staff councils and at meetings, matters
likely to affect employees' interests. Information about matters of concern to employees is given through information
bulletins, reports and mestings which seek to achieve a common awareness on the part of alf amployees of the
financlal and economic factors affecting the Trust's performance.

During employment, the Trust seeks to work with employess, taking Into account their personal circumstances, to ensure
appropriate tralning, development and advanced employment oppottunities are avaliable to them to reach their full
potential.

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, beasing in mind the aptitudes of the applicant
concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort Is made to ensure that their employmant within
tha Trust continues and that the appropriate training Is arranged. it is the Trust's policy that the tralning, carest development
and promotion of disabied persons shoutd, as far as possible, be Identical to that of other employses.

Full detalls of these poflcies are avaitabie from the Trust and its indlvidua! schools.

Equal Opporiunities Policy

‘The Trustess recognise that equal opportunities must be an infegral part of good practice within the workplace,
The Trust aims fo establish equality of opportunity In all areas of acfivity tncluding creating a working environment
In which the contribution: and neads of all people are fully valued. The Trust has an Equal Opportunities poilcy.

Objectives and activities
. Objects and aims

5-CAT Js based at Shireland Collegiate Academy within Sandwell, Sandwell ls an area of extreme deprivation,
where students have higtorically had lower than average outcomes.

Shireland Collegiate Academy Trust has at its core, a mission to secure high performance and raise aspiration,
The Trusteas' underpinning ethos within the Shireland Collegiate Acaderny Trust is a bellef In the potential of all learners
and a commitment to provide the environment, which unlocks that potentlal and develops the individual and colisctive salf-
esteem and confidence, which Is the prerequisite of an enterprising cuiture.

The Trust aim Is to ensure through education, students' lfe chances are improved and through community
engagement, the chances of families are improved.

The Trustees have an absolute commitment to the concepts and principles that every single person that comes
through the doors of one of our academies |s to have left having grown as an individual, in terms of their skill set
and their respect for others, Our aim is that everyone will have participated in a "Whole Education” that prepares him or
her both personally and professionally and they are well placed for a sucesssful and happy Iife,

The Trust has a full vision statement as stated above. This vislon Is at the heart of the Trust's strategy, and it Is
central to the aims and objectives of the Trust,

Trustees have established the following obleciives for the MAT.

+ Qutcomes for young people in terms of progress are above the national average. Our academies are sither good or
outstanding within 3 years of Joining.
Al academies are financlally healthy and stable.
Technology Is used for both teaching and non-teaching aspects to improve workload A governance and compliance
structure to allow for rapld growth

*  Bullding partnership working to achleve outstanding educational outcomes.

Af lis core, the Trust belleves In an inclusive education for students at every abllity lavel, with a rigorous grounding In
academic fundamentals to ensura every student Is equipped for the future through teachlng relevant and innovative skills
for the era in which they live. This is supporied by the ethos of ensuring every student will be sale, happy, ambitious
for themselves and respectiul of all.
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST
Acom mited by guarantee

TRUSTEES' REPORT FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 - cONTINUED

Objectives and activities - continued
The ‘frust has chosen fo remain as a "Local Medium sized Trust" and works locally within the West Midlands.

Cur aim is for all our academies within our family to be at least good and have a clear process for improving
educational outcomes whilst ensuring financlal sustatnability.

Trustess' planning covers a five-year perlod with an emphasis on phased growth and a detailed marketing and
communication strategy, linking Into detivery planning and staff appralsals.

At the heart of this stralegy is the need to ensure the environment within the academles allows the delivery of a
high quality and personalised cumiculum that enables all our students to succeed. To ensure success, we have
developed process driven solutions that pive consistency of approach and help minimise the overall impact of risks 1o
the academies and the Trust. Wa work coflaborafively with our local and nelghbaouring schools to achleve best
usa of resources and maximlsa value of &)l of our assets. Recruitment and retention and professional development
of high-quallty staff with a clear path for progression Is central to our management approach.

The Trust's core principles are that all studsnts should have access to a fully rounded, personalised, and creative
educatlon. We try to bring together individuals and organisaions that are committed to all students having access
10 a 'whole education'. By this, we mean an education that:

»  Develops arange of skills and competences {teamwork and communication skills), qualities

¢ (Resillence and empathy), knowladge and associated qualifications that young people will need for thelr future.

¢ Makes learning more relevant and engaglng for young people, with them at tha cantre of their own learning, providing
a mix of practical and theoretical learning In context.

»  Recognises that learning takes place in various settings, not just the classroom, and that the best schools sngage the
wider communlly In learning and pushaes leaming out Into the community.

Alongside the work within the local community, the Trust has ereated a number of business parinars and are fully
committed to creating parinerships that make the best use of technology and are innovative. We see partners in research
and development as being central to our work to help break down barriers to learning and accslerate student progression.

The Trust key alms for each of Its acadamiles ara to develop an Innovative curricutum, which will: Develop key competences
in an interactive context driven curriculum framework.

«  Grow an enterprise environment.

»  Offer a curriculum based not upon the more common mode! of multiple inteliigences but upon an emotional intelligence
model.

»  Provide just in time delivery to learners wherevar they are through the development of an online Learning Gateway.

e Ralse aspirations, recognising the Importance of Arts in the development of individuals. Support individua, economic
and community development through performing arts and links to ereative industries.

» Ensure pedagoqy Is as creative and ataptable as the curriculum and staff are supported by a rounded programme of
tralning and coaching.

In addition to the above, the Trust Is fully committed to the concept of its academies working collaboratively with
local pariner schools, Students and their families benefit significantly from the acthvities, which are tocated and
distributed around and within the Trust. The provision of study support, chiidcare, aduit training, sport, art related
activities and communlty partnership are both unusud and inspiing.
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST
{A company iimited by quaraniee)

Objectives and activities - continued

TRUSTEES' REPORT FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 . cONTINUED

The Trustees of the Trust (S-CAT) have embraced a growth sirategy, which stated by the end of 2022 the Trust
should contaln the original Ouwtstanding Secondary School (Shiretand Collegiate Academy), plus anothsr nine schools.
As of August 2022, the Trust has grown to a Trust of nine schools.

Number Name Academy Ofsted Rating Jolned
Trust

Shiretand Collegiate

1 Acaderny Secondary Outstanding 2007
Thorns Collegiate

2 Academy Secondary Special Measures A7
Holyhead Primary Good with

3 Acadamy Primary outstanding features 2017
Tameside Primary Not yet rated —

4 Academ Primary {special measures 2018

Y directed to convert)

5 Shireland Tech Primary | Primary Rot Rated ~Frea 2019
Woest Bromwich Mot Rated — Frea

6 Cclieglate Academy Secondary School 2019

Not yet rated -
7 mﬂg;"k Primary Primary {special measures 2021
y directed to convert)
) Not yet rated (special

8 Lightwoads Primary Primary meastres directed to 2021
Academy canvert)

<] 3?11_?éeland Biomedical Secondary Special measures 2022

In addition {o the above, the Trust has two privately run Nurseries ona graded outstanding at the point of jolning the
Trust and one Good. The Trust also has approval to open three further free schools over the next two to three

years (one secondary and two primary scheols).
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SHIREL.AND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPOHT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 - GONTINUED

Objectives and activities - continved

Pringipal Activities

The Articies of Assoclation describe the Trust's purposes which indlude: o advance for the public benefit education
fn the United Kingdom, In particular by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing, and developing schools offering
a broad and balanced currculum,

The admissions policy and arrangements for the Academies are In accordance with admissions law and the Df&
Code of Practice, as they apply te maintained schools,

Under the terms of the Funding Agresments agreed with the Department for Education (DFE), the Academies must
provide a broad educational curdculum for puplls of different abilitiss who are drawn mainly from the focal area.
The Trust has a planning process which links the Trust's strategy, alms, objectives and largets in respect of school
improvement, governance, financial heatth and compliance, people, and leadership Into the delivery of each acadamy.
Each Academy has its own Ralsing Attainment Plan {(RAP) with objectives and targets that derive from those of
the Trusts, focusing on improving the quality of defivery, enhancing levels of engagement, progress for all, and partners
In leasning. The Trust and the individual Academles' development plans are approved annually by the Board of Trustees.
Plans at &l levels are supported with risk management plans and the annual budget.

The Ralsing Achievement Plans state how the Academias will unlock the potential of pupils, promote their wellbeing, ralse
asplrations and self-esteem, and achleve high standards. Each Academy is at the heart of its community, promoting
community cohesion and sharing facllies with other scheols and the wider community, developing new dirsctions for
teaching, and leatning and establishing continuous improvements in standards. Shireland Collegiate Academy Trust has
developed two key siatements, upon which the vision for the Trust Is based.

Thess are:
"L_eading Learning, Changing Attitudes, Promoting Cohesion". "Aim Higher, See Further, Be Conearnaed for Everyone”.

The first statement broadly aims to guide the work of the Acacdemies' staff and the second has been develaped
for students.

In additlon to the above the Trust have adopied values to "inspire, innovate and collaborate”.

. Objectives, strategies, and activities

Shirgland Coliegiate Academy Trust has a comprehensiva flve-y sar strategy, which commenced September
2017, and has been reviewed and updated In July 2021 and to take the Trust to 2025

Our strategy is to:

s  ensure the growth of the Trust to no more than 16 schools within a West Midiands hub-based structure
evolve the operating model to ensure proactive and process driven whole organization improvement ensure
the organisation has the capacity to deliver the operating model in a way that enables and protacts;

e create a structure for coilaboration (staf and studenis) within sectors and across the Trust create an
environment for staff to develop professlonally, personaily and with a sense of purpose;

» create a structure that ensures Technology Is used to maximise organizational improvament for the academic
year 2021/2022,

Qur key toci have besn:

s 1o improve communication and coltaboration across our Academies;

s to streamline our reporting processes and Improve data callectlon to allow isaders and Trustees/Governors
to make better dacistons quicker;

» 1o evaluate our services and ensure sverything is done 1o achleve value for monegy or best value and costs
can be sustalned;

» o continue creating a robust compliance and monitoring framework that all Academies abide by To prepare
our Academies far Outstanding under the Ofsted framework and |SBL framewark;

« {o atiract the bast staff and develop opportunities to enhance all staff both professtonally and personatly;

+ to develop internal structures which create efficiencies and can respond to growlh.
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST
Acom by guaranige

JRUSTEES' REPORT FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 - CONTINUED

Objectives and activitles - continued

The above fool then created a number of key objectives of developing and or embedding the following:

!73.:559?’?‘49’5" PLnr

A coilaboration model of working within and across sectors;

A framawork fo drive student and staff recrultrment;

A framework for reporting at all levels with clear service and impact measures;

An operating modet that Is process driven with a focus on maximises all resources with a clear road map for
growth;

An estates strategy to support the learning and business environment;

A monitoring and evaluation framework for compliance;

A success plan for afl key leadership roles;

An asccountability framework for all leadership and management;

A professional tralning programme for staff at middle and senfor management levels;
The primary and secondary education briefs;

The use of the Edu school curiculum Into both primary and secondary;

The provision for EYFS, BEND incluslon support and COViD eatch up,

Over and above the Trust objectives, each academy had a number of focus areas which were agreed by the Board
to add o thelr own Ralsing Attainment Plan, These were:

*

To participate in collaborative events for staff and students;

Waork with families to enhance the uplake of Passport to Success;

Establish the use of Triby TV fo comemunlcate with students and staff Including Trust values;

To continue work on becoming carbon neutral by 2030 —making buitds more efficlent and achieve energy savings
of at least 3%,

Focus on 4 vulnerable students to work with central officer locking at preventative action;

IE—'cmus on 4 families to work with central officar to engage In P25 and develop their life aspirations to fully engage
n schoot ffe;

To work with staff around wellbelng and menial health.

The board also agreed the key priorities from each Academy Ralsing Attainmant Plan, as below:

Shireland Colleglate Acadsmy

Davelop & CPD programme 1o [ncorporate better use of Technology to enable Teaching and Learning,
Enhance boys progress and subject knowledge around the new inspection framework.

improve the delivery of underperforining subjects through targeted support

Investigate T Levels within 6% form provision

Introduce the Edu schoo! platform at KS3 and KS4

Thorns Colleglate Academy

Reduce the number of fixed term exclusions to befow national average
£mbed the delivery of PHSE, RE and SRE

Reducse the P8 gap for SEND students

Priorities wellbeing of staff and stidents

Ensure staff deliver bessons in line with SOPs

West Bromwich Collegiate Acedemy

L]

L B B

Develop & programme for vulnerable students to counteract the negatives influences and raise their
asplrations

Develop a careers strategy for the Academy

Create cpportunities for students te showcase talents at & regional and natlonal ievel

Create an options process with advice and guidance which meets the students’ needs and aspiratlons
Embed the Immaerslve room across all curriculur areas

Holyhead Primary Academy

* ® o

Continve to deveiop oracy through encouraging deeper discussion and reascning and fuither improve
provision for rapid graspers / greater depth children.

Further davetop the ability of staff to select most appropriate tagk or activity.

Continue to implement the new mental Maths strategy as well as ready to progress,

Improve writing outcomes across school by Improving writing stamina and spellings.

Continua to provide pastoral support for children, families, and staff 1o ensure mental health remalns a
priority.

Reduce persistent absance to be In ine with pational 10.0% and continue to improve overali attendance.
Continue to plan for Covid19 gaps such as additional pastorat support and practical Science To improve the
approach to safeguarding.
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantss)

TRUSTEES' REPORT FOH THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 . CONTINUED

Objectives and activitles - continuad

Tameside Primary Acadamy
« improve the quallly of delivery of class-based lsarning
Ensure quality of defivery of Foundation Subjects
Embed the new EYFS curdieulum
Improve attendance to 86%
Develop links with local nurseries and preschools to increase numbers in Nursery and the Reception ciass.
Increase numbers in all year groups to full capacity {see financial target setting).
Ensure comprehensive COVID Catch Up strategy is appropriate and targeted for all teachers to be graded as at
least good.

- » & 0 B

Shireland Technology Primary
* Improve Attendance / Persistent Absentesism / Punctuality post COVID
s Ensure COVID Caich Up Measures and Interventions are appropriate and Impiemented with the progress of
pupits carefully menitored and evaluated regularly to close identifled gaps and support mental health
»  Pupli Premium Identification Improved and % raised
»  Focus on Writing and Phonics (Improve subjact knowledge and modeliing o exceed age related expactations and
impiement Rocket Phonlces)

Lightwoods Primary Academy
s implement a curriculum which is well planned, and sequenced and mests the needs of all learners.
Develop quality of strategic leadership so school Is effectively led and managed at all levels.
Develop teaching approaches so that school practice Is effective (QFT).
improve provision for chiidren with SEND.
Engage and target famllies so attendance rises.
Smoothly implament the transiiion to the Trust portal and SharePolint environment,
Ensure financial sustainability.
Manage COVID risks to minimise disruption and keep everyone safe.

Wallbrook Primary Academy
»  Tolmprove the quality of teaching and learning through support in modelling, questioning and feedback.
To introduce and implement & new behavlour policy.
To develop and implement a robust approach to Improve attendance.
To Improve attainment in reading and writing across key stages.
To Improve relationships and communication with familles uslng technology
Ensufe appropriate measures are put In place to support pupll progress and wellbelng affected by Govid-
9

[ 3 I N Y

Flrst Steps Nursery and Tinywoods Nurgery )
e The instaliation of a brand-new purpose-bullt nursery facility to include a dedicated EYFS training space for Flrst
steps
+ Develop the use of technology to support delivery
= Develop the curiculum in line with EYFS at our Academies (F3L}

Obiectives were not set for the academles jolning the Trust in year (UTC).

c. Public benefit

The Trust aims to advanca for the public benefit edication within the West Midlands area, offering a broad curricutum
and an excellent education environment for its puplls. The Trust allows use of its faciiities for recreational and other leisure
time ocoupation for the community at large in the interests of social welfare and with the interest of Improving the flfa of
that community,

The Trusteas confirm that they have complied with the duty in the Charilles Act to have dus regard to the Charity
Commission general guidance on public benefit In exerclsing their powers or duties. They have referred to this
guidance when reviewing the Trust's alms and objectives and In planning its future activities.

In setting our objectives, the Trustees have considered the Charlty Commission's general guidance on public benefit.
All Trustees have been issued with the refevant Information and this has been tranglated in the workings of the Trust
via the development planning process.
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST
(A eompany limited by guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 - cONTINGED

Strategic report
Achievements and performance

The Trust continues to evolve and to adapt to the everchanging educational environment. The Trust Is in
Its fifth year of operation since conversion to a Multi Academy Trust in 2017.

The Trust is committed to continual improvement, which Is achleved In a number of
ways, Including Improvement planning, review mestings, continual professional development, lesson observations,
parformance management, self-evaluation, data analyzsis and action planning.

This year, we have focused on getting 'back to normal' post pandemie. Spaciflc areas of work have been around
supporting vutnerable familles, establishing a framework for SEND, cultural development to embed Trust behavioral
values, ensuting our students are ‘catching up' on lost time and preparing students for external examination after 2
ysars without them amongst othars.

As a Trust below are a few examples of our achlevements this year:

Improved communication and created a structure for coltaboration for students, staff, and famllles
Worked with 171 vulnerable families across all our schools

Finallsed our model structure for ieadership and management to allow for the growth of the Trust
Successlon plans

Changed pay structure for feadership to ensure a sustainable and competitive modsl

Introduced new software systams (budgeting, HR} to Improve elficlencies

Appointad a centralised SEND officer to support processes

Continued to work with pariners to develop our curriculum offer, particularly around & technology driven
approach

Worked with partners to develop a tuition platform to support catchup after COVID

Maximised student numbaers in a number of our schools including the UTC

improved our PowerBi dashboards for performance and attendance data

Established a compliance framework across the Academles (compllance tracker)

Completed the instaliation of a new nursery buikd for FSN

Maximise the use of grant funding to support young paopie ta lost time over COVID

Created a support structure for office management and estates

Student progress has been fantastic across alf our schoals.

Al our Secendary Schools:
s Shireland Collagiate Academy had the best results In the schoot's history with 74% GCSEs In 8-4 grades.
+ Thorns Coliegiate Academy received its best results In history with over 80% achieving GCSEs in English
and Maths

At our Primary schools:
+ HPA were joint 27 gut of 87 schools in Sandwall
e LPA waera joint 4" out of 87 schools in Sandwsl!
»  TPA celebrated its best results since joining the Trust, with the school exceeding every nationgl indicator at
KS1 and 2 in all areas.
«  WPA Increased its overall percentage to 76% meeting expactad standards at KS2.
* STP exceeded nationat indicators in KS1 and was scored 5 out of 87 schools at KS1
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 . cONTINUED

Strategic report - conttnued

Achievements and performance -~ continued

. Key performance indicators

The Trust sets annually key performance targsts covering students’ performance in all five key stages, EYFS, English,
math, attendance, and behaviour. For staff performance targets are set for individual teacher performance, overall quality
of taaching and learning and quallty of leadershlp and management  These targets reported regularly throughout the year
to the Board.

The Resources Committee monltors the resources of S-CAT through the review of monthly management accounts to
include reporis on ereditors and debtors, breaches of expenditure limits and budget movernents, along with a cash flow,
balance sheet, income, and expenditure statements, forecast year end out tum and projections for the coming four
academic years.

A key financial performance indicator for the Trust is the fevel of reserves held at the balance sheet date and, in
perticufar, the number of unrestricted reserves plus restricted Income reserves at year end. At 31 August 2022, the
balance of the urvestricted and restricted income reserves was £2,832,120 {2021: £3,216,282), which is after transfers of
£894,249 to the restricted fixed asset fund to fund capltal expenditura during the year. Further detalls on the level of
reserves held by the Trust are set out In the Reservas Policy section below.

Within these reports, Trustees recelve information on the following financial performance Indicators:

2022 2021
Reserves 85 a % of total Income 8% 1%
Leadership Cost as % Total staff costs 23% 26%
Management Cost as % Total staff costs 5% €%
We ailso use the following indicators for this this period which we have summarised below:
2022 2021
Pupil numbers 4,452 4,111
Staff to Student Ratlos
Pupils: Teachers 15,071 18.44:1
Pupils: Management 104.80:1 88.09:1
| Puplls: Executive/Governance 849.62:1 714.12:4
Income per Student 211,858 £11,635
GAG Income per Student £5 667 £5,063
Spend per Student £7,453 £6,538
GAG spend per Student £5,843 £4 847
Average FTE Cost £39,349 £40,194
Staffing costs as a percentage of Expenditura 78% 78%
Staffing costs as & percentape of GAG Income 97% 102%

. Golng eoncern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate
resources to continua in operational existance for the foreseeabie future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concein basis In preparing the financial staterments. Fusther details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can
be found in the accounting policies within the financial statements.

Promoting the success of the company

The Trustees have acted In the way which they consider, In good faith, promotes the success of the Trust for the benefit
of its pupils and their parents, the Department for Education and the Educatlon and Skills Funding Agency as principal
funders and regulators, its suppiters and loca! wider school community as a whole, and in doing so have gliven regard to
(amongst other matters):

Our educational business refatlonships and community
With a highly committed and dedicated workforce, the Trust takes great pride in listening to what our puplls, parents and
local cemmunity want and continues to provide the level of education outcormes and results that they have come to expect.

The Trust continues to evolve and to adapt to the ever-changing educallonal environment, leading to the continued
increase In the awarsness of the Trust's overall activitles and educational performance.
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TRAUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 - CONTINUED

Strateglc report - continued
Achlevements and performance - continued
. Promoting the success of the company - continued

As an educatlonal focused charitable organlsation, public benefit is also at the heart of ali we do. The detalls In tha
"Objectives and Activities" and "Achievements and Performance” section: of the Trustees' report above provide full detalls
of the impact of our activities and our achievements for the year.

With respect {o suppliers, the Trust's poliey for the payment of suppliers Is to agree to terms of payment in advance
in line with normal commercial practices and, provided a supplier performs in accordance with the agreement, to abide by
such terms.

The Trust Is aiso committed to contibuting towands combating the threat of giobal warming by using energy efficlent
measures to reduce COZ emissions throughout its bulldings, facilities, and operatlons.

Our stakeholders

In addition to our puplis, parents, suppliers and wider local community, the Trustees also recognise the importance of their
relationshlp with the Department for Education (DIE) and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), as
principal tunters, reguiators, and stakeholders. The Trustees are committed to the effective engagement with the DIE and
the ESFA (and their representatives) and recognise that its success depends on the Trustees and senior managerment's
abllity to engage with them effectively and to work with them constructively, taking into account thelr guidance and bast
praciice Initiatives, whilst also working in fine with the specific requirements of the Trust’s Funding Agreement and the
Academies Financial Handbook.

The Trust's key asset is its people. it employs over 700 staff, excluding agency workers, and it Is only through the combined
effort of this woarkforce, together with our supporters and volunteers, that we can change the [ives of the chiidren under our
care. The Trust encourages the Involvement of all employees in decision making processes that impact on them directly
and further detalls on our engagement with our people Is detailed Inthe "Engagement with Employees (including Disabled
Persons)”* sectlon of the Trusteses' raport above.

Our Members
The Trustees are committed and openly engaged with our Members through the active involvement of some Members as

Trustees and regular diglogue with them, including an Invitation to the Annual General Mesting and annual strategy and
vislon day. The Members are actively engaged In understanding our strategy and vislon for the future, our culture and
ethos, our people and our educatfonal parformance and standards.

aintglning g r ion for high 5
The Multi Academy Trust has been in existence for five years and is fully committed to continual improvement, which it
achleves In a number of ways, includlng improvement planning, review meetings, continual professional developmant,
Issson observafions, performance management, self-evaluation, data analysis and action planning}. The Trust also
continually davelops strategies to maintain and grow its pupil base, Including looking for new schools and academlies to
Join the Trust, and further improve relattonships with our suppliers.

The information In the "Achlevements and Performance” section of the Trustees’ report abave provide full details of our
achievements during the year and the standards of educational performance we have achieved for all our stakeholders.

Financlal review

The majority of the Trust's Incomae is received from the Education and Skllis Funding Agency (ESFA') in the form of
recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to parileular purposes. The grants recelved from the ESFA during the year
ended 31 August 2022 and the asscciated expenditure of these grants are shown as restricted funds in the Staternent of

Financial Activities.

Thae Trust also recelves grants for fixed assets from the ESFA and other organisations/ funders - and these are shown as
restricied flxed asset funds In the Staterment of Financial Activities. The balance of the restricted fixed asset fund is
reduced by the depreciation charges on the assets acquired using these funds.

For the year ended 31 August 2022, the Trust's total Income {excluding capital grants and the net assets transterred from
academies joining the Trust in the year} was £33,710,728 (2021: £28,458,908) whila the total expenditure (excluding
depreclation and LGPS FRS102 pension cost charges) was £34,074,419 (2021: £26,916,458), resulting in a net deficit
{after transfers to restricted fixed asset funds) for the year of £-363,691 (2021 £8083,554).
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 - CONTINUED

Strategic report - continued
Financial review - continued

The fixed assel fund excass of income over expenditure for the year was £17,406,592. Total excese of income over
expenditure for the year is £14,683,901.

The balance of reserves at 31 August 2022, excluding the restricted fixed asset funds and LGPS llability fund was
£2,832,120 (2021: £3,196,360).

At 31 August 2022, the net book value of fixed assets was £85,163,487; movements in tangible and intangibie fixed assats
are shown In notes 16 and 17 to the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for providing educatlon and
the assoclated suppon services to the pupils of the Trust.

Shireland Colleglate Academy Trust held balances at 31 August 2022 of £93,726,654 comprising; resiricted fixed asset
fund of £95,972, 535, restricted general fund of £640,201, a pension reserve deficit of £5,078,060 and
£2,191,819 of unrestricled funds.

We have continued with our work on developing and smbedding a process driven compliance model to create the capaclty
and infrastructure 1o alfow for the continued growth of the Trust, Wae have also continued our work of creating business
and community partnerships to help support the work force reform agenda and to break down the barriers to lparning and
accelerate student prograssion. We have project managed the transfer of a university technical college Into the trust and
continued our work on Improving our estates and bringing them up to standard., This Inciudes our continued investment into
technology and the ICT infrastructura of our schools.

The focus of funding for the Trust has been our continuing tha drive for improving standards and outcomes for all ur
students and development of the snvironments to allow effective teaching and learming and back-office support. As always,
all ourwork is underlinad by the use of technotogy with the objective of improving life chances far all and reducing workload
for all staff.

Land, buildings, and other assets were transterred to the Trust from the Local Authotity as part of the Free Schools project
atthe beginning the year. The tolal value of these net assets transferred, as included in the Statement of Financial Activities,

were £17,500,000.

This year the Trust has been fortunate fo receive donated services In kind, to the value of £1,900 relating to children's gift
packs, lunch for staff training, selection buxes, tepee and demarking idt. These have not been included within the financtal
statements as the guantum actually used cannot be accurately stated and does not have a material impact anthe financial
statements.

Includad within the Trust's balance shest at year end is & deflned benefit pension scheme lablity of

£5,078,000 (2020; £21,649,000), which arises from the deficit in the Locel Government Penslon Scheme ("LGPS" that is
attribttable to the Academies. Further detalls regarding the deficit in the LGPS at 31 Augusi 2022 are set out in note
30 to the fingnclal statements.

The pension raserve fund has a deficlt balance at 31 August 2022 of £5,078,000, which reprasents the deficit inthe LGPS
at the balance sheet date. The effact of the LGPS deficht is that Trust is required to make additionat pension contributions
over & number of years in order to fund the deficit. These additional pension contributions will be funded trom the Trust's
annual recurring income, which may significantly Impact its abifity to continue to deliver its educational outcomes with the
availabte public funding I receives. The Trustees have noted however that the Government has provided a guarantse that
in the event of an Academy closure, any outstanding LGPS lisbilities would be met by the Department for Education.

The key financial policies were reviewed and adopted during the periad which lays out the framewark for the Trust's

financial management, Including financial responsibilities of the Board of Trustess, CEO, Princlpals, FD, managers, budget
holders and other staff, as wek as the delegated autherties for spending.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 - CONTINUED

Strategic report - continued
Financial review - continued

1. Reserves policy

The Trustess have reviewed the reserve levels of the Trust. This review encompassed the nature of income and
expenditure streams, the need to maich income with commitments, the status of the Trust and the nature of reserves. The
outcome of the review has been encompassed within the Trust Reserves policy.

The policy states our academies should have a minimum level of reserves of 2% of GAG Funding with the recommendged
tevel belng 5% of total funding. The maximum level to be held In reserves by an academy should be no more than 8% of
GAG funding. New opening schoals should hold in the first ysar a minimum of 3% of reserves as required by Free Sechool
regulations.

Based on the Trustees' recommended level of reserves of 5% of total Income this squates to £1,685,536 based onthe
currant year's results forthe Charltable Company. The reserves paticy is monitored through termly raports to the Resources
Committee. This Is to ensure there is provision to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencles such as urgent
maintenarnce.

The deficlt on the penslon scheme will impact on the cash flow of the Trust through an increase in employer's penslon
contribution over a perlod of years when the fund is reviewsd. This will not have a direct impact on the reserves In this
current accounting perod.

The Trust's current level of free reserves (tolal funds less the amount held In fixed assets and pension reserve} is
£2,832,120 of which Trustees are commiited to holding £640,201 for restricted projects.

The level of uncommited reserves as at 31 August 2022 was £2,191,918.
2, Investment policy
The Invesiment objectives of the Trust are:

* To achieve the best financial rafurn available whilst ensuring that security of deposits takes precedence over

revenue maximisation.
+  Only Invest funds surplus to operational need based on all financlal commitments being met without the Trust bank

account becoming overdrawn.

Investment risk will be managed through asset class selection and diversification to ensure that security of deposlts
takas precedence over revenue maximisation.

To ensure the security of any investment, assets will only be ¢onsidered with banking institutions, which have credit ratings
assessed by Fitch, Moody, and Standard and Poor's to show good credit In the short and long term.

Investments wili be based on the highest tevel of return but with the maximum protection to the funds. Investment within
banking orgenisations will be made on both short and long-term base. Short-term deposits will alfow immediate access to
funds. Long-term investment will be based on the annual cash flow and as such will be reviewed annually at the beginning
of each academic year.
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Strategic report - continued
Financial review - contlnued
. Principai risks and uncertainties

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Trust Is exposed, especially In the operational areas, such as
teaching, heaith & safety, safeguarding and schoo! trips, and in relation to the confrol of finances and strategical
development of the Trust. They have introduced systems, including operational procedures and Intarnal financial controls
In order to minimise risk, and have agreed a Risk Management Strategy and Risk Management Plan, which incerporates
a Risk Begister. The Hisk Managemant Plan Is constantly reviewed In light of any new information and formally reviewed
annually

Detalled consideration of tlsk has been dalegated to the Audit and Risk Committee and members of the Executive
Leadership Team and Senlor Leadership Team. Strategic Risks are managed on a Gentral Trust Risk Management Ptan,
while more aperational risks associated with individual Acedemies are incorporated into thelr local development plan
(RAP). Trustees via the Audit and Risk Committes review the high risks identified from each Academy alongside the
sirategic Trust risks to ensure adequate measures are being put In pface to mitigate the risks described.

The key contrals used by Trustees to inform this process, Include:

s A clear govarnance structure.

e Detalled tarms of reference for tha Raesources and Audit Committees, with dlear levels of financial delegation.

«  Tarmly reports on risk management to the Board and Audit Committes. Effective systems of internal financial
control.

= Aclear Development Planning process. A Trustees' induclion process.

= Parformance Management process for staff with targets linked into the Development Planning process, A training
programme for managers.

s Three- five-year financlal planning linked to the overall abjectives of the Charity. Clear organisational structure with
defined lines of reporting.

«  Adetallad review of policles to ensure alt relevant lagistation is complied with; to include human resources, finance,
health and safety, and student care,

* Review and challenge by an independant external consultant.

»  Haif yearly and annue! audit by external auditors and tarmly reviews by the Responsible Officer, Self-evaluation.

Thraugh the Risk Management pracess, the Trustess of Shiraland Collegiate Academy Trust are satisfied the major risks
around educational standards, safeguarding, finances, retention of good staff, misuse of funds and poeor management
have been identified and steps taken to mitigate where necessary. Trustees recognised that systems coukd only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance that major risks have been adequately managed.

Educational
The continudng success of the Trust is dependant on continuing o attract pupll applicants In sufticlent numbers by

miaintalning the highest educational standards across all key stages. To mitigate this risk, the Trustees ensure that pupil
success and achievement are closely monitared and reviewed, with corrective actions embedded at an early stage, and
that relationships and partnerships with parants, the local community and other organisations and groups are mantalined
and are effective In praducing a cohesive and supportive community.

Safequarding and child protection
The Trustees continue te ensure that the highest standards are malnfalned in the areas of selection and monitoring of staff,

the operation of child protection policles and procadures, health & safety, and discipline.

Financlal

The Trust has considerable reliance on continued Government funding. Whilst this level (s expected to continue, there is
no assurance that Government policy or practice will remain the same or that public funding will continue at the same levels
or on the same terms, particularly i light of confinuing changes In the National Funding Formula for schools.

Continulng Increases in employment costs, including pension costs assaciation with both the Teachers' Penslon Scheme
and the Local Government Pension Scheme, and premises costs will aiso continue to place significant pressure on the
Trust's financial position and its ablfity to deliver balance budgets in the future.

The Trustees examine the financial health of the Trust formally every lerm reviewlng performance against budgets and
overall expenditure by means of regular update reparts at all full Trustees and Finance and Rescurces Committee
mestings.

At the balance shea! date, the Trust had no significant labilities arising from trade creditors or deblors where there would
be a significant offect on the Trust's liquidity.
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Strategle report - continued
Financial review — continued
. Principal risks and uncertaintles - continued

The Trustees recognise that the LGPS deficlt represents a slgnificant potential Higbility to the Trust. However, as the
Trustees considar the Trust Is able to meet its known annual contribution commiiments for the foreseeable future, the sk

from this Habllity Is minimised.

Staffin
The success of the Trus! is rellant on the quality of its sta¥f, so the Trustees monjtar and review policies and procedures

1o ensure continued development and tralning of staff as well as ensuring there is clear successlon planning.

Ealiures in governance and / or management

The risk in this area arises fram the patentlal fallure to effectively manage the Trust's finances, interna} controls, compliance
with regutations and legislation, statutory returns etc. The Trustess continue to review and ensure appropriate measures
are in place to mitigate these risks, which Inciudes those relating to fraud and mismanagement of funds.

Fraud and mismanagement of funds

The Trust has engaged David McVean {external independent censullant) to perform a programme of work almed at
checking and revigwing the financial systems and records as required by the Academy Trust Handboak, All finance staff
receiva tralning to keep themn up to date with financlal practice requirements and fo develop their siills In this area.

Hawever, there are a number of areas whera It has been felt that the work carried out would still not be enough to mitigate
the risk to an acceptable level. These risks have been kept high and carried forward into next year as Treatable ifems,

these are as follows:

1. Fallure to achleve our strateglc and operational objectives, due to Internai processes and structures not belng In
piace to dealwith growth and capacity and skill set of current teams to respond to and change to a proactive detivery
modaf of working.

. Inabillly to monitor the organization effectively and make carrect stratagic decisions due to the lack of managemernt

information (data) — correct data in the fight piace at the right time.

. Financlal impact due to low pupil numbers particutarly In the primary sector.

Key staff dependencies and the need for clear succession planning and training/development of staff

. Potential noncomptiance with leglstation

Inability to respond to growth Inschools In a consistent and process driven madel of delivery.

. Cost base and deployment of Leadershlp and management,

Poor Internal communication leading to duplication of effort or lack of collaboration

ONEmOAL M

Work will continue through 2022/23 to mitigate these risks, plus the challenges we now face with regard to recruitment of
high-quality staff.

Fundraising

The Trust raises funds for specific projects that will enhance the learning experience and environmant for exlsting and
future students, whers funds cannot be accessed via exlsting channels such as government sdication funding. Fundraising
is primarily undariaken by staff or parents; no professional fundralsers or commaercial participators work with the Trust
currently. Fundraising |s undertaken in ne with the Fundraising Regulator's Code of Fundraising Practice. The Trust Is
mindful of the requirement to pratect the public, particularly vuinerable people, from unreasonably intrusive or parsistent
fundraising approaches or undue prassure to donate. No compiaints have been received In respect of fundraising activities;
the general complalnts policy of the Trust would be applicabls if so. All funds recelved have been pald Intact to this
organisation. Any fundraising has been carried out In accordance with Charity Commisston guldance.

Page 18



SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 - CONTINUED

R L-E R A L AR R AR R e LR LA B LU s st

Strategic report - continued

Streamlined energy and earbon reporting

UK Greenhouse gas emlisslons and energy use data for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022
Energy consumption used o calcutate (KWh) 6,860,805
Energy consumplion break down {(KWh} (optional
Gas ! 3,805,089
Fuel oll | 95,295
Eiectricity 1 2,838,901
Transport fuel I 20,521

cope 1- Emission in metrc tonnes CO2: 1
Gas consumption l 696.94
Owned transport (mintbuses) | 3.27
Fuel oll l 25.55
Yotal sc 1 725.76
Scope 2 emissions in matric tonnes CO2e
Purchased elactricity 624.23
Scope Issions In metric tonnes CO2e
Business travel in employee-owned vehiclas 1.80
Total gross emissions In metric tonnes CO2e 1,351.79
tntensity ratlo
Tonnes CO2e per pupil | 030

Quardification and reperting methodology:

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Repariing Guideiines. We have also used the GHG Reporting
Protaco! - Corporate Standard ark have used the 2022 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

Intensily measurermnent

The chosen intensity measurement ratlo s total gross emissions In metrdc tonnes CO2e per pupil, the
recommanded ratio for the sector.

Measuras taken tolmprove energy sfficiency

Wa have Invested In Smart Meters for 8!l schools to monitor our energy usage through an interactive dashboard. Alf of our
Academles have heen given access to this and tasked with finding sofutions to reduce consurmption, including simple
behavicural changes of staff to more actlve measures such as timed laptop trofleys etc.,

We glsa engagad In a feasibility study for the installation of Solar PV or: our buiidings. This has coma hack positive, and
we Intend to bulld a strateqgy for the installation of solar panels across our estata over the corming years.
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST

A compan ited by guarantee

JTRUSTEES' REPORY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 - cONTINUED

Strategic report - continued
Plans for future periods

The Trust strives to continually improve levels of attainment for all puplls, equipping them with the quelifications, skiis, and
character to follow their chosen pathway, whether it is into further and higher education or employment, as well as
promoting the cortthued profassional development of its staff.

To plan for the future, we laok at the progress from previous years, the key risks and challenges o our organisation and
individual schaols and the opportunlties to progress all of our schools to aur geal of outstanding. This evaluation includes
an analysis of student and staff data, OFSTED and financlal status and any changes in level of achievement.

The Trust plans for the forthcoming year are spili Into 4 key areas:

Dalivering an outstanding education:
- Ensuring we use the correct SEND and Safeguarding frameworks to maximise the achievement of specific cohorts
- Improve reading at all levels
- Raising ths awareness of curriculum and consistency In its delivery across our estate
- Develop meaningful partnerships

Management of Growth
- Planning for people as we grow, inciuding an employee offer, conslstent models of pay and career siructures
- Reviewlng centralisation vs autonormy and which areas benefit from centralizing
- Creating a map to understand our data better
- Reviewing Governance structure to ensurg fit for growth

Sustainability
- To review high spend areas Including catering and energy usage
- Rationalise nursery provision
- Plan our estates to serve us better
- Tralning of key stakehelders including Trustess and Governors

Processes and Systems
- Project and process managing the implementation of key systems and infegraling where possible (including
EveryHR, Dataptan, IMP)
- Revlewing 4 processes for improvement
-~ Continulng to establish standard operating procedures for officas

Each Academy within thelr planning for the coming year are set mandatory fuci to ensurs a base standard Is met. These

ara:
- Afocus on Taaching practice including processes on reviewing teacher quality
- Afocus on attendance, persistent absence, and exclusions
- Afocus on engagement of speclfic cohorts of pupils including SEND and viinerable and engagement of familles

and partners
- A focus on operational sustainability, financial, environmental and people

As part of our internal processes, Academies are also asked to complete a compliance tracker bi-annually. This Includes
& list of requirements to ensure the Academy is fully cuompliant with external and internal requirements, for example in the

areas of H&S, Safeguarding, GDPR etc.
Funds held as custodian on behalf of others

The Trust holds Post 16 Bursary Funds on behalf of the ESFA, which are distributed to students as required and Jn line
with the terms and conditions of the funds.
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST
{A company Himited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 . CONTINUED

Disclosure of Information to auditor

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:
s thereis no relevant audit Information of which the charltable company's auditor Is unaware, and
»  that Trustess have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and te establish that the auditor is aware of that information,

Auditor
The auditars, Haines Watts, were appointed during the year and, having indicated their wilingness lo continue in
offics, will be proposed for reappolntment In accordance with section 485 of the Gompanies Act 2006.

The Trustaes' report, [ncorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the comparny
directors, on 14 Dacember 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

‘ A Savell-Boss

Chalr of Trustees
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantes)
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As Trustess, we acknowledge we have overall responsibilily for ensuring that Shireland Colleglate Academy Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financlal and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonabie and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss,

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DIE's Governance Handbook and competency
framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has defegated the day-to-day responsibiity to the Chisf Executive Officer, as accounting
officer, for ensuring financlal controls conform with the requirements of bath proprisly and good financial
managemant and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement batwasn
Shirgland Collegiate Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting o
the Board of Trusteas any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internat control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustess' report and In the Statement
of Trustees’ responsibiities.

The Board recognises the importance of building s capaclly and expertise and continues to address this as
& high priority.

The Board of Trustees reviewed the Trust's governance structure during the year to evaluale its impact and
effactiveness and is satisfied the Trust has In place a wide range of skills that contribute to the successful governance of
the Trust and are satisfied that the current structure in place Is appropriate and effective for the Trust.

This year Trustees have established a challenge group lead by two trustess to deep dive Into the effectivensss of
govarnance to ensure compliance with the governance handbook. This group have met twice and identified areas for
improvement with regard 1o take up of training and Improving communication.  This group will continue to mest next year.

On an annual basis, the Trustess ask the Governance Officer to complate an evaluation of the terms of
reference to ensura that the responsibifities of commitiees have been discharged in year correctly, the effectiveness of
meetings, the value of the tralning received and ways In which governance can be improved.

The full Board of Trustees has been supported In its effactive financlal oversight and governance through the formal work
undertaken by the Resources Committee, Audit and Risk Committee and the Standards and Performance Committees of
sach academy. These are Committees of the Board of Trustees, and they met 3 times raspectively during the year. The
minutes of these Committee mestings are provided to the fuli Board of Trustees and the Chairpersons of these Committees
report o each full Board of Trustes meeting on the key matters considered at their meetings and the Impact for
consideration by the full Board of Trustees. In addition to this Trustees are provided with monthly managemaent accounts.

The maln Issuss and challenges during the year related to the Impact of the lagacy of COVID 19 on students, families and
our staff and ensuring support and rescurces were available, Low birth rates and impact on primery student recrutiment. The
need o malntaln outstanding educational provislon, within the context of levels of deprivation and reducing grant funding.
Ensuring the longer-tarm sustalnability of the Trust and its schools whilst developing & strategy for growth. The challenges
presented with the OFSTED special measurs judgement especially arourd the monitoring of SEND and the safeguarding
Issues this has created for one of our schools.

Contlict of interest

The Trust within lts governance structure has a policy on how to manage conflicts and asks all
Members/Trustees/Governors/all staff to declare any Interest as soon as they become known. The pecuniary interest
teglsters are held centrally and avaifable to all stakeholders to enable them to discharge their roles and responsibifities
effectively. A separate registsr Is held for the trading subsiciary but adheres In full to the Trust pecuniary Interest palicy.
Processes for appointment of staff and awarding of contracts takes into account any declared conflicts.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT - CONTINUED

The Board of Trustees has formally mat 6 times during the vear,

Attendance during the yest at meetings of the Board of Trustess was as follows:

Trustee Mestings Qut of & possible
| A Savell-Boss, Chalr of Trusless 5 g

M Conway-Jones 3 6

Sir M Grendy B 8

| Foyie 3] 8

J Nair, Board Vice Chair 4 [

R Tilt 3 8

J Anandau 3 8

J Hunt 5 [

A Dannis 5 8

The Resources Committee reports direstly to the Board, its main function is to provide scrullny and challenga In respect of
the Trust's finances and to ensure compliance with statutory and contractual cbligations under the tarms of the Funding
Agresment with the DIE.

During the year, the Committee reviewsd a wide range of detailed finance reports and recommended to the Board the
approval of the annual budget and the year-end accounts. The key issues dealt with by this commiites were the monitering
of the approved deflcit plans fo ensure the financial stability of the Trust and the review of the S-year forecasts addressing
the change in the pupil population.

Altendance during the year at mestings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings QOut of a possible
A Dennls [Chalt)
A Savell-Boss
Sir M Grundy

J Hunt

M Conway-Jones
J Nair

M O'Hanlon

| Foyle

Q|- iM GO |Gt M
O3 L0 | G LD L0 OO | L | G

Tha Audit and Risk Committes Is also a subcommittsa of the maln Board of Trustess. Its purpose is to maintain an oversight
of the Trust's governance, risk managemen, internal control, and value for money frarnawork. It reports its findings
annually to the Board of Trustees and the Accounting Officer as & critical slerment of the Trusts annua! reporting
requirements.

The Chair of the Trust Board and the CEQ {Accounting Officer) are not membars of this committee but attend. The key
Issues dealt with by the Audit Committee during the year was the review of the reports recelved trom the RO in relation to
the Trust's systems of Internal control and the actions undertaken to address the control weaknesses identified, the
appointment of new auditors and a review of our approach to compliance. Review of Risk and the actions taken to mitigate
this plus approval of relevant policles.

Attendance during the year at mestings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings Qut of a possible
M Conway-denaes 2 3
J Nair 2 3
A Dennis 2 3
J Hunt 3 3
1 Foyie 3 3
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT - CONTINUED

Revlew of value for money

As accounting officer, the GEO has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in the use of public
resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal oulcomes
achleved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each
academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustess where value for money can be improved, including the use of
benchmarking dala where appropriate.

The accounting officer for the Trust has deliverad value for money during the year by developing & best value statement
which deseribes the key delivery mechanisms for achieving value for maney including the linking of development plans
into the budget, purchasing arrangements fo Including a tendering process, and challenge by senlor leaders, the
Respansible Officer, and the auditors. The statement directs all senior leaders 1o ensure value for maney is demonstrated
In all of the foliowing areas:

Staffing

Use of accommodation
Use of assets

Quality of teaching
Quality of learning
Students' welfare
Heaith and safety
Purchasing

® ® % % 9 8 8 @

In addition to this statement, the Trust continually seeks to work with national and focal businesses to enhance its
achlevements, improve standards and collaborate to maximise use of all resources.

The Responsible Officer on behalf of the board also regularly monitors value for money, as Trustess ses this as infegral to
the achlevemanis of the Trust.

The purpose of the system of tnfernal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage riek to a reasonabie lavel rather than to eliminate all risk of fallure to
achieve policies, alms and objsctives; it can therefore only provide a reasonable and not an absolite assurance of
seffectiveness. The system of internal controls Is based on an ongolng process designed to identify and priaritise the risks
to the achlevement of Trust policies, alms and objectives. It anables the Board to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and their potential impact, and to manage them efficiently, effectively, and economically. The system of
Internal control has been in place in for the period from 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval
of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust Is exposed togsther with the operating, financial and
compliance controls that have been Implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees Is of the view that there is
& formal ongaing process for identifying, evaluating, and managing the Trust’s significant risks that has been In place for
the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of appreval of the annual report and financlal statements,
This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

The risk and control framework

Shireland Colleglate Academy Trust's system of Interna! financial and governance control is based on the framework set
by the ESFA of regular managemsnt information and administrative procedures including the segragation of duties and a
system of delegation and accountabllity. In parileular, It includes:

Comprehensive budgeting and monltoring systems with an annual budget and monthly financlal reports which are reviewed
and agreed by the Trustees. .

Regular reviews by the Trustees and Resources Gommittes of reports which indicate financial parformance against the
forecast and of major purchase plans, capital warks and expenditure programmes

Selting targes to measure financial and other performance ‘

High level reporting to Standards and Performance Committees Clearly defined Best Value and Tendaring guidslines.
Clear detsgation of authorily and segregatlon of duties via the scheme of delegation !dentification and management of risks.
Use of 5-year financial ptanning, linking into the development planning of the Academies.

Page 24



SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST
A ny firgited by guarantee

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT - CONTINUED

The risk and contro! framework - continued

in addition, to the above the Trustess have considered the guldance for directors contained within the Turnbull Report.
They balleve that although it is not mandatory for the Trust It should, as a publicly funded body, adopt these guldelines as
best practice and tries to do this by assessing the likely risks and then implemerding policies and processes to embed the
principles of control. Explaining to smployees that they have respansibllity for internal control as part of thelr accountabllity
for achleving objectives and embedding the control systerns identified In the financlal manuals, via use of the Learning
Gateway, so that it becomes part of the Academlas' culture, with minimal use of administrative tims.

Thae Trusteas have considered the need for a specific Internal audit funclion and have declded not to appolnt an internal
auditor. However, the Trustees have appointad Mr David Mcvean, an external consultant, to carry out & series of internat
checks until August 2022, The reviewer's role includes giving advice on financial and operational matters and performing
a range of checks on the Trust's finandial systems. The reviewer reported, in accordance with guidance from the ESFA, to
the Trustees on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Trustees' financial responsibilities in
2021/2022, Mr Mevean produced termly detailed reports and reported directly to Trustees, throughout the year. The
governance Officer produced an annual summary report outlining the areas reviswed, kay findings, recommendations, and
cenclusions to help the committes consider actions and assess year on year progress of actions required for the year.

Mr D Mcvean has delivered his program of work during the year ended 31 August 2022 as planned covering Managing
Conflicis of [nterest, Compliance & Understanding of the Academles Trust Handbook & Financlal Regulations,
Management of contracts, Procurement, Cyber Security, Performance Management, Staff Well-Being & Governance
Trairing.

There were no significant internal control weaknesses identified from the work completed. The following were
recommendations from the Responsibie Officer's report:

+ Performance Management
Consider the alignment of all Parformance Management systems for teaching and non-teaching staff.

s Governance Trainlng
The Board should ensure there Is a clear and established succession pian in piace for the more critical governance
roles.
The Skills Audit shoudd be more adaptive and support the overall strategy for the Trust,

These arrangements can provide only ressonable and not absclute assurance that asseis are safeguarded,
transactions are authorlsed and properly racorded, and that material errors or lzregularites elther are prevented or
would be detected within a timaly perlod.

Review of effectivensss

As accounting officer, the CEQ has responstbiltity for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal contral.
Puring the year in quastion the review has been informed by:

The work of the Trust's School Improvement Partner {SIP} and Responsibie Officer (RO)

The financial management and governance seif-assessment process

The work of the Trust Stratagy Team and Senior Leadership teams within the Trust whe have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The work of the external auditor

Correspondence from the ESFA

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of Internal
contrel and a plan to address weaknasses and ensure continuous improvement of the system s In place.

Approved by grder of the members of the Board of Trustees on 14 December 2022 and signed on their behalf by:

A Savell-Boss Sir M Grundy
Chalr of Trustses Accounting Officer
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of Shireland Colteglate Academy Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the Trust's Board
of Trustess and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irreguiarity, improprlety and non-compliance
with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Trust, under the funding agreament In place between the Trust and
the Secretary of Stata for Education. As part of my consideration, | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy
Trust Handbook 2021,

§ confirra that | and the Trust's Board of Trustees are able to identify any material kregular or Improper use of all funds by
the Trust, or material nen-compllance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's funding agreement and
the Academy Trust Handbook 2021,

{ confirm that no instances of materlal irregdlarity, impraopristy or funding nion-compliance have been discovered to date. if
any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notifled to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.

Sir M Grundy
Accournting Officer

14 Dacember 2022
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantes)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purpases of company law) are responsible for
preparing the Trustees' repart and the financiat statements In accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published
by ihe Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law, the
Trustees must nat approve the financial statements unless they are satlsfied that they give a true and fair view of the stats
of affairs of the Group and the charitable company and of thelr incoming resources and application of resourcaes, including
their incorme and expenditure, for that perlod, In preparing these financlal statements, the Trustees are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them conslstently.

. obsarve the mathods and principles of the Chariles SCRP 2018 and the Acadernles Accounts Direction 2021
to 2022,

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

. stale whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any maleriat depariures
disclosed and explained In the financial stalements.

. prepare the financial statements on the golng concern basls unless It s inappropriate 1o presueme that the group

will continue in business.

The Trusteas are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group
and the charitable company's transactions and disciose with rersonable accuracy at any time the financlal position of the
Group and the charitable company and enable them tc ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the charitable company and hsnce for
taking reasonabte steps far the prevention and detaction of fraud and other irragularities.

The Trustees are responsiole for ensuring that in their conduct and operation the Group and the charftable company apply
financial and other controls, which conform with the reguirements both of propraty and of good financial management.
They are also responsible for ensuring grants recelved from ESFA/DIE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the mainenance and integrity of the corporate and financial Information Included on the
group's website, Legisiation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legisiation In other jurisdictions.

Approved by ordgr of the members of the Board of Trustees on 14 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

A Savell-Boss
Chair of Trusteas
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Shireland Collegiate Academy Frust (the ‘charitable company') for the
year ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Consolidated Balance Sheet,
the Trust Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) and the Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency

(ESFA).

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent charitable company's affairs as
at 31 August 2022 and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income
and expenditure, for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction
202110 2022.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable
taw. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We are independert of the charitable company in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financia! statements in the UK, including the FRC's
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of

accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any raterial uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the charitable company's ability to continue
as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibifities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information
The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in

the Annua! Report, other than the financial statements and our Report of the Independent Auditors thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conciusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistert with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise 1o a
material misstatement in the financial statements themselves, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
- the information given in the Report of the Trustees for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistert with the financial statements; and

- the Report of the Trustees has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF

SHIRELAND COILLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST - CONTINUED

Matters on which we are required {o report by exception
in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent charitable company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Trustees.

We have nothing 1o report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 reguires us to report
ta you if, in our opinion:
- adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or
- the financial staternents are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the Directors of
the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees
determine is necessary o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent
charitable company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
coneern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Group or
the Parent charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Independent Auditors that inciudes
our opinion. reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
traud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
infiuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregulartties, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to both the charitable company itself
and the sector in which it operates. We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected
to have a material effect on the financial statements from cur sector experience and through discussion with the
Trustees and other management. The most significant were identified as the Companies Act 2006, the Charities Act
2011, the Charlties SORP {FRS102) and the Accounts Direction and Academy Trust Handbook issued by the ESFA.

We considered the extent of compliance with those laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related
financial statements. Our audit procedures included:

making enquires of management and Trustees as to where they consider there o be a susceptibility to
fraud and whether they have any knowledge or suspicion of fraud;
obtaining an understanding of the internal controls established 1o mitigate risks retated to fraud or non-

compliance with laws and regulations;

- assessing the design effectiveness of the controls in place to prevent and detect fraud,

- assessing the risk of management override including identifying and testing journal entries;

- chailenging the assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting
estimates.

Whilst our audit did not identify any significant matters relating to the detection of irregularities including fraud, and despite
the audit being planned and conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK), there remains an unavoldable risk that material
misstatements in the financial statements may not be detected owing to inherent limitations of the audit, and that by their
very nature, any such instances of fraud or irregularity would likely involve collusion, forgery, intentional misrepresentations,
or the override of internal controls.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibifities. This description forms part of our Report of the Independent
Auditors.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST - CONTINUED

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Comparnies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

qu i

Kevin getts (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Haines Watts Birmingham LLP
5-6 Greenfield Crescent

Edgbaston

Birmingham

B153BE
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY YO
SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement and further to the requirements of the Education and Skilts Funding
Agency (ESFA), as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, we have carried out an engagement to
obtain fimited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Shireland Collegiate Academy
Trust during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament
and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Shireland Collegiate Academy Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Shireland Coliegiate Academy Trust and the
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Shireland Collegiate Academy Trust and the ESFA, for
our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Shiretand Colieglate Academy Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Shireland Collegiate Academy Trust's funding agreement
with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 August 2011 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September
2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and
the financial transactions conform to the autharities which govern them.

QOur responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and
are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, We report to you whether anything has come to our attertion in carrying out
our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income recelived during the period
1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the ESFA.

We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter,

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations
in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence 1o express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consegquently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be iderttified in a
reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion,

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence refevant to the regularity and propriety of the charitable
company's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

- An assessment of the risk of material irregularity and impropriety across the Trust's activities;

- Areview of governance procedures;

- A review of financial budgeting and monitoting procedures;

- A review of related/ connected party transactions In accordance with internal processes and the
Academy Trust Handbook;

- A review and sample testing of internal financial controts; and

- A review and sample testing of procurement procedures.

Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in alf material respects the expenditure

disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has not baen applied to purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

,g\\gz; P oDt

Haines Watts Birmingham LLP
Reporting Accountant

5-6 Greenfigld Crescent
Edgbaston

Birmingham

B15 3BE
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income end endowments from
Donations and capital grants
TFransfers into the Trust
Charltable activities

- Educational operations

- Teaching schonls
Other trading acfivities
Invesiment income

Tetal lzcome
Expendlture on
Raising funds
Charitable actividles

- Educational operations
Teaching schools

Total expenditure

Net incoms/{expanditure)

Transfers between funds

SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TR

T

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUSY 2022

Other recognised gains/{losses):
Actuarlal galns/{losses) on defined

benefit penslon schemes
Net movement In funds
Reconciliation of funds
Totai funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

The Consoiidated Statemant of Financial Activifies inciudes &ll galns and Insses recognised in the year.

Restricted 2021/22 2020421

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds

Note [ 4 £ £ £ £
3 103,332 - 1,335,672 1,439,611 8,808,607
M 320,270 - 17,745,994 18,068,264 7,184,310
4 148,670 31,316,247 . 31,525,887 26,353,603
- - - - 40,000

5 1,737,521 22,220 - 1,768,741 1,792,408
6 1,491 - - 1,491 2,898
2,512,201 31,398,437 19,081,666 52,792,384 44,181 916

7 2,080,630 2,020,752 196,345 4,276,727 3,436,941
7 - 31,457,788 2,246 469 23,704,257 26,664,720
7 - - - - 40,000
2,060,630 33,478,540 2,441,814 37,880,984 36,141 661

251,661 {2,080,103) 15,639,852 4,811,410 14,040,258

(8,904) (885,344) 884,248 -

] - 18,930,000 - 18,930,000 (2,539,000}
242,757 15,964,553 17,534,100 33,741,410 11,501,255

1,934,268 (20,366,908}  78,565853 £0,119,313 48,612,088
2,177,025 (4,422,355} 86,100,053 93,854,723 60,113,313

The notes on pages 36 1o 56 form part of these financlal stalements.
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2022

2022 2021
Note £ £

Fixed assels
Inlangibée fixed assets 14 1,605 8219
Tangible fixed assels 15 85,269,400 77,547 651

95,281,004 77,556,870

Current assels

Silock 17 49,074 41,424

Debtors 18 2,129,328 2,467,262

Cash at bank 4,085,923 4 671 544

6,274,326 7,160,230

Creditors

Amounts faling due within one year 19 {2,480,647) (2,855,756)
Net current assets 3,763,678 4,324,474
Tote! assels less current liabiltles 99,074,882 81,880,344
Creditees: amounts falling due after mora than one year 20 (141,960) {118,031)
Net assels excluding pansion liabiity 08,932,723 81,762,313
Pension liability 29 (5,076,000) (21,649,000
Total Net assels 53,654,723 60,113,313
Funds
Unrestricted funds:

General fund 21 2,172,025 1,834,268
Aestricted funds;

General reslricled funds 21 855,645 1,262,082

Restricted fixed asset funds 21 96,100,053 78,585,953

Pension reserve 21 (5,078,000} {21,549,000)
Total funds carrlad forward 83,054,723 60,i13,313

The financial sialemgits ware approved by the Board of Trustees on 14 December 2022 and were signed on its behalf:

Chalr of Trustees

Company Heglsiration Number - 05330683

The notes on pages 36 {o 56 {orm part of thase financial staterments.
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST

TRUST BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2022

2022 204
Note £ £
Fixed assels
Intangible fixed assets 14 1,605 8,219
Tangtble fixed assels 15 85,289,400 77,547,651
Investments : ] - -
95,281,004 77,555,870
Current sssele
Siock 17 45,074 41,424
Debtors 18 2,044,308 2,177,808
Cash at bank 4,089,249 4,624,296
6,182,620 6,843,526
Creditors
Amounis fafiing due within one year 14 {2,388,850)  {2,519,062}
Net currant assets 3,783,678 4324474
Total assets less current liabilities 98,074,683 81,880,344
Creditors: amounts falfing due after more than one year 20 {141,860) (118,031)
Net assets excluding penslon lability 95,832,723 81,762,313
Pension Hability 29 {5,078,000}  (21,640,000)
Total Not aesets 83,854,723 60,113,313
Funda
Unrestricted funcs:
QGeneral fund 21 2,177,025 1,554,268
Restricted funds:
General restricted funds 21 655,645 1,262,002
Hestricled fixed asset funds 21 96,100,053 78,565,953
Penglon raserve 21 (5,078,000}  (21,649,000)
Total funds carrlad forward 63,854,723 60,113,313

were approved by the Board of Trusiess on 14 December 2022 and were signed on its behalf:

Savell-Boss
Chair of Trustees

Company Reglstration Nursber - 08336693

The notes on pages 36 1o 56 forr part of these financiat statements.
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST

CONSOLIBATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

2022 2021
Note g £

Cash flows from operating activities
Casgh generated from operations 23 18,230,185 8,351,262

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
18,230,186 8,351,262

Cash fiows trom Investing activilies 25 (18,639,786) (8,252,738}

Net cash provided by (used in) Investing activities
(18,839,786) (8,252,738}

Cash fiows frem financing activitles 24 33,080 138,784

Net cash provided by (used in) finencing activities
33,980 136,784

Change In cash and cash equlvalents In the reporting pertod
(675,621) 1,235,307

Cash and cash syuivalents at the beglnaning of the reporting pertod
4,671,544 3,436,237

Cash and cash eguivalents al the end of the reporting perlod
28, 27 4,085,823 4,671,544

The notes on pages 36 to 56 form part of these financial statements.
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 AUGLIST 2022

1 Accounting policles

A summary of the principat accounting policles adopled (which have been applisd conslstently, except where noted), judgements and
key sources of eslimation uncerainty, is 8et out below.

Basis of preparing the financla! statements

The financial siatemants of the Group, which is a public benefi ently under FAS 102, have been prepared under the historic
cest convention In accordance wilh the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable In the UK and Republic of kreland (FRS 102), the
Accounting and Reporting by Ghasities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable 1o charlties preparing their accounts In
accordance with the Financlal Reperling Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of frefand (FRS 102) {Charlies SORP
{FRAS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 lssued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2008.

Shireland Collegiale Academy Trus! meets the definition of a public benefit entity undar FRS 102.

The Conscidated statement of financlal aclivites (SOFA) and Consolldaled balance sheet consolidate the financial
statements of the Academy and its subsidiary undertaking. The resulis of the subsidiary are consolldated on a Hne by line basls,

The Trust has taken advantage of the axemption aliowed under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has nol presented its
own Statement of financla? activilies In these financial statements,

Golng concorn

The Trustees assess whather the use of gaing coneern Is appropriate i.e. whether there are any matarial uncertainfios related lo events
or condifions that may cast significant doubt or the abliity of the academy to continue as & going concern. The Trustees make this
assessment in respact of a period of one year Irom the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concludad
that the academy has adequate résources to continue in operational exlstence for the foresesable future and there are no material
unceriainties about the academy's abiity to continue as & going concern, thus they continua to adopt the golng concern basis of
accounting in preparing the financial staiements,

ncome
All Income Is recognised In the Statement of Firanciel Activitles once the Group has entitlement to the funds, it is probable that the

Income will be received and the amount can be measired reliably.

Grants

Granis are included In the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities an & receivable basis. The balance of Income received for
spechic purposes but not expended diring the parlod is shown in the relevant funds on the balance shaet. Where Income Is received in
advanca of mesting any parformance-relsied condilions there 1s not urconditfonal entillerent to the Income and iis recognition is
deferred and intluded in crediors as deferred income untit the performance-relaled conditions are met. Where entitiement occurs
before incomae is recelved, the Income is accrued.

Genersl Annual Grant Is recognised In lull in the Consalideted Statement of Financial Activities In the year for which it Is receivable and
&ny abatement In respect of the period Is deducted from Income and recognised as a Hability.

Capliat grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional ensitiement 1o the grant. Unspent amounts of capiial grants are
reflected In the balance shest in the restricted lxed asset fund, Caplial grants are recognised when thera lg enlilsment and are not
deterred over the life of the assat on which they are expended.

Donations
Deratlons are recognised en a recelvable basls (where thera are no performance related conditions), where It ls probable that the

income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Other income
Cther income including the hire of facilfies, ls recognised in the period i Is receivable and fo the extent the Group has provided the

geods or services.

Transfer on conversion

Where assets and fiabllities are recsived by the Group on conversion to an academy, the fransferred assels are measured at fair value
and recognised in the Balence sheet at the polnt when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the Group. An equal amount of
income Is recognised as a transter on conversion within 'Income from Donatlons and Capital Grants' to the net assets receivad.

Transter of existing academies Into the Group

Whare assets and llabllities are recelved on the transfer of an existing academy Into the Group, the fransferred assets are measured at
fair value and recognieed In the Balance shest at the point when the rsks and rewards of ownership pass fo the Group. An equal
empunt of incoma Is recognised for the iransfer of an exlsting academy Into the Group within ‘taceme from Donations and Capital

Grants' to the net assels acquired.

Bonated flxed assets {excluding transfers on converslon or into the Group)

Where the donated good is a fixod asset If Is measured at fay valus, unfass It is Impractical 1o measure this refiably, in which
case the cost of the item to the donor sholli be uzed. The gain is recognised as 'Income freem Donafiens and Capital Grants® and a
cormesponding amount is Included in the appropriate fixed asset category and deprecialed over the useful economlc life in

accordanoe with the Group's accounling policlas.
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1 Accounling policies - continued

Donated goods, facilities and ssrvices

Goods donated for resale are inclided at falr value, being the expected procesds from sale lass the expecled costs of sale. If it is
practical to aszess the falr value at receipt, I§ Is recognised in stack and 'Income from other irading activities'. Upon sale, the value of
the stock Is charged against Income from ofher trading activitles' and the proceeds are recognised as ‘fncome from other frading
activities'. Where It Is Impractical to falr value the tems dua to the volume of low vaiue ftems they arg noi recognised in the financial
statements untft they are sold. This income is recognised within 'ncome from other trading activilles'.

Expanditure

Expenditure is recognisad onee there 1s & legal or constructive obligation to franster economle benefil 1o a third party, It s probable that
a fransfer ol ecanomic benafits will be raquired in setifament and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expendiure s
ciassified by actvly. The costs of esch activity are made up of the total of diract cosls and shared costs, including suppont coste
Involved i undenaking each activity. Direct costs atirlbutable to & single activity are allocated directly to that activily. Shared costs
which contsbute to more than one activity and support costs which are not atirbutable 1o & single activity are apportianed between
those activilies on & basls consistent with the use of resources. Central stalf costs are allocated on the basls of time spent, and
depreciation charges aliecated on the portlon of the asset's use,

Hatsing funds
Falsing funds includes all expenditure inourred by the Group 1o raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes costs of all
fundralsing activities, events and non-charltable trading.

Charitable activities
Cuosts of charilable activiles ate Incurred on the Group's educational operations, Including support costs and cosis relating to the
governance of the group appartioned fo charitable activities.

Al resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverabla VAT.

Interest receivable
trferast on funds held on depost is included when receivable and the amount can be measured reflably by the Group; this |s
normally upon nelification of the interest pald ar payable by the institution with whom the funds are deposited.

Taxatlon
The Academy Is considered {o pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule & of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore It meels the
defintlion of & charilable company far UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy Is potentially exempt from taxation fn respect of Income or capital gains racelved within categories
covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporaiion Tax Aot 2090 or Saction 256 of the Taxallon of Ghargeable Galns Act 1892, 1o
the extent that such Income or gains are applied exciusively to charitable purposes.

Intangiile assats
Intangible assets costing £1,000 or mote are capitallsed and recognised when future economic benelits are probable and the

cost or value of the agset can be measured reliabiy.

Intanglble assets are initlally recognised at cost and are subsequenlly measured at cost nat of amonisation and any provision
for impairment. Amartisation is provided on kntangible assets al rates calculated to wille off the cost of sach asse! on a straight-line
basis over #s expected useful fHe, as follows:

Compiter aoftware - 20% per yoar {5 years)

Tangible fixed assets
Assets cosling £5,000 or more are capialised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, ret of depreciation and any provision for

Impairment.

Whare langible fixed assets have been acquired with the ald of specific grants, either from the government or from the private sector,
they are Included In the Balanca Shast at cost and doprecialed over thelr expected useful economic life. The related grants are credited
to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Consolidaled Statement of Financlal Activities and carded forward in the Balance Sheet.
Depreciation on such assets ls chargad to the restricted fixed asset fund In the Consolldated Statemenl of Fingnclal Acthities so as to
reduce the fund over the usefut economic life of the related assst on a basis consistent with the Academy's depreciation poliey.

Depreciation Is provided an all tanglble fixed assets cther than freeheld land, af rates caloulaled to write off the cost of each asset on a
straight-ine basis over Us expected useful fives, as follows:

Leaseheld property - 29% per yoar {50 years)
Furniture and equipment - 10% per year {10 years)
Computer equipment - 20% per yesr {5 years)

Asgsts In the coursa of construction are included at cost. Depraciation on these essels Is not chargad until they are brought into uss.
A review for Impalrment of a fixed asset I carried out If events of changes in circumstances Indicate that the carrying value of any fixed

assel may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the camying value of fixed assets and thalr recoverable amounts ate racoghlsed as
mpalrments. impairment losses are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financlal Activities.
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SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAH ENDEE UGUST 2022

1 Accounting policles

investmeants

The Academy's holding in its wholly owned subsidiary, Shirelang Leamlng Limiied is included in the balance sheet at nil cosl as
the company Isa company limited by guarantee. There Is no readlly available market value and the cost of valualion exceeds
the benefit dedved. Shireland Collaglate Academy Trust is the sole member of Shirelind Eearning Limied.

Stocks
Stocka are valied af the lower of cost and nel realisable value after making due allowance for obsolete and slow-moving

stocks. Cost ineludes all Sirect costs and an approptiate proportion of fixed and variable overheads,

Debtors
Trade and oiher deblors are recognised at the seftiement amounl afler any trade discount offered. Prepayments are valued at the

amount prapaid net of any rads discounts due.,

Cash at bank and in hand
Cagh at bank and In hand Includes cash and shori-lerm highly Hiquid Invesiments with a short matirity of three months or less from lhe

date of acqulsition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

LiabHities

Llablities are recognised when there Is an obligation at the balance shes! date as a resulf of a past aver, Itis probable that a transfer
of econamic benefit will be required in sefilemant, and the amount of the setllement can be estimated refiably. Liabilties are racognised
at the amount thal the Group anticipates it witf pay 1o settie the dabt ar the amour It has received as advanced paymenis for the goods

of services it must provide,

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has an obligation at the repoding date as & result of a past event which It Is probable will
result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligalion can be estimated reliably,

Provislons are measured al the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obfigatlon. Where the effect of the time vaiue of
money is material, tha provislon is based on the present value of those amounts, discounied at the pre-tax discount rata that reflects the
tisks speciiic to the liabllity. The unwinding of the discount is recognleed within Interest payable and similar cherges.

Operating leases
Rentalz under oparating leases are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Financlal Activities on & stealght-line basls over the iease

term.
Finencta! instruments
The Group onfy hoide basle financiad Instruments as defined in FRS 102, The financlal essets and tinanclal labllities of the Group and

thelr measuremant basls are as follows:

Financial assels - rade and other debtors are basic financlal Instruments and are debt Insiruments measurad at amortised cost as
delalled In note 18. Prepayments are not financial instruments,

Cash at bank - i clagsified as a basic financial ingtrument and s measured at face valye.

Financlal fiabilities - frade craditors, accruals and other creditors are financlal Instruments, and are measured at amorlised cost &s
dotalted in niote 19. Taxafion and soclal security are not Included in the linanclal instrurnents disclosure definition, Defetred Income s
not deamad 1o be a financlal liablity, as the cash setfiemant has already takan piace and thora 1s an obligation te defiver services rather
than cash or another financial Instrument. Amounts due to the Academy's wholly owned subsldiary are held al face valus less
impalirment.

Agency arrangemsnts

‘The Trusl acts as an ageni in distributing 16-15 bursery funds from the ESFA. Payments received from the ESFA and subsequent
dishursements to students are excluded from the Staterment of Flnanclal Activities as the Trust does not have control over {he
charitabie appiication of the funds. The Trust can use a percentage of allocation towards its own adminlstralion costs and this
is recopnised in the Statement of Financial Activiies. The funds recelved, pald and any balances held at pered end are disclosed in

note 33.

Fund accounting

Urwestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the Group at
ihe discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed aseet funds are resources which are te be applied fo specific caplial purpases fmposed by funders where the asset
acquired or crealed Is held tor a specilic purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other rastricted funds recelved with restrictions Imposed by the {funder/donor and include granis
from the Educalion and Skifis Funding Agency/Department for Education.

awvestmend Income, gains and losses are aflocated te the appropriate fund,

Page (38)



SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUVQUST 2622

1 Accounting policies

Penslon benelits
Retirament benefils to empioyees of the Greup are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) and the Local Government
Pangtion Scheme (LGPS'). These are defined benefil schemes.

The TPS Is an unfunded sohame and comiributions are calculated to spread fhe cost of pensions over employess’ working lives with the
academy lrust In such & way that the pension cost Is a substantially level percentage of current and fulure penslonable payradl, The
contibutions are determinad by the Governmant Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospeciive unlt cradit method. TPS
is an unfunded mull-employer scheme with no undertying assets to assign between employers. Censequently, the TPS 16 treated a8 a
defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the cantributions recognised in the pericd fo which they relate.

The LGPS Is & funded multi-employer scheme and the assels are held separately from those of the Group in soparate trusiee
administerad funds. Pension scheme assels are measwred af fair value and Habllities are measured on an actuarlal basls using the
prajected unit credit method and discountes at a rale equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the llablitles. The acluarial valuations are obtained at least tiennlslly and are updated at each balance
sheet date. The amounts charged 1o net income/(expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of scheme Introductions,
benelit changes, setiements and curtaliments. They are Included as pert of staff costs as Incurred. Net Interest on tha net defined
benefit llability/asset is also recognised in the Gonsolidated Statemant of Finascial Activiies and comprises the Interest cost on the
definad benslit obligation and Interest Incama on the schere nesets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the
beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference betwsen the Interest Income on the scheme
aseets and the actual raturn on the scherne assets Is recognised In other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognlsed imediately In other recognlsed gaing and iosses.

Critical sccounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Eslimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical expedience and other faciors, Including expectations of
{futurs events that are believed o be reasonable under the clrcumstances,

Critical accounting astimates and assumptions
The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concemning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will,

ty delinition, seldom equal the related aclual results. The estimates and assumptions that heve a significant risk of causing & material
adjustment to the canying ameounis of assets and liabilties within the next financlal yeer are discussed below:

The present valie of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefi liabilty depends on & number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basls using a vasiety of mssumptions. The assumptions used In defermining the net cost (income) for
penslons Inckta the discaunt rate, Any changes in these assumplions, which are disciosed in note 29, will Impact upon the earrying
amount of the pension Habllity. Fusthermore, & rofl forward approach which projects resufls from the latest tull actuarial valuation
performed at 31 March 2018 has been used by the aciuary In vakuing the penslons liabifity at 31 August 2022 Any differences between
tha figures derived from the rol forward appraach and a full actuarial valuation would Impact on the carrying amount of the penslon

The judgemsnta that have had a significant effect on amounts recognlsed into the financlal statements are those conceming
depreciation policles and asset Eves.

2 General Annual Grant (GAQ)
Uniil March 2021, under the original funding agraemant with the Secretary of State, there were academies within the Trust which wera
subject to limits on the amount of GAG that could be carried farward from one year to the next. An amount equat to 12% could be
carriad farward, of which up 1o 2% could be used for general recurrent purposes, with any balance being available for premises/caplial
purposes. From March 2021, following & deed of variation and supplental funding agreements, thers is no longer a limi on the amount
of GAG that can be carrled forward for any of {he Trust's academles,

No academies within the Trust exceeded the fmils during the year ended 31 August 2022,

3 Donatons and capliaf granta

Bastrictad 2022 2021

Unrestricted Restricted  Fixed aspet Total Total

funds funds funds funds funds

£ £ £ £ £

Capital granis - - 1,335,672 1,385,672 t,219,583%
Other donations 103,339 . - 103,338 7,588,316
Transfer on conversion 320,210 - 17,745,984 18,066,264 7,184,310
423,604 - 10,081,666 16,505,275 16,883,207
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4 Funding for the Trust's educationat operationa

2022 2021
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funda funds funds funds
DHE! ESFA grants £ |4 |4 |4
General annual grant - 28,011,636 26,011,538 20,812,975
Othar DIE/ESFA grants
Starl Up Granis - . . “ 50,000
Pupli Premium . 1,717,687 1,717,687 1,466,633
Teaching Schoo! Direct " 24,000 24,060 2,454
Fres school meals - 200,542 200,542 208,792
Teachers pay grani - 22116 22 11§ 291,154
Teachers pension grant - 62,499 62,499 721,093
Tryst capactty funding - 286,371 286,371 152428
PE Sports grant - 92,370 82,370 71,914
Free school funding - - - 180,000
Tutoring programme - 209,692 208,692 -
Supplementary grant - 327,136 327,136 -
Others - 363,015 353,018 74,087
- 20,306,973 29,305,973 24,629,738
QOther Government grants
Locat authority grants - 1,812,030 1,812,030 1,717,885
COVID-15 additions! funding (DIE/ESFA)
Caich up premium - 217,330 217,430 280,719
COVID Waorkfores . 40,784 40,784 101,900
COVID Summer schoo! - - - 127,328
COVID-12 sdditionat funding (non-DIE/ESFA)
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme Grant - - . 46,551
Other income trom the Trust's educational operations 149,670 - 148,670 45,482
149,670 91,376,117  31,525887 26,353,603

The Trust recelved £217,430 (2021: £280,719} of funding for eatch-up premium and costs incurred In respect of this funding totalled

£217,430 (2021: £280,718).

The Trust furloughed some of its staff under the government's CJRS. The Funding received of £ail (2021: £46,551) relates lo sta¥ costs

In respect of staff which are Included within note 8 as appropriale.

5 income from trading activities

2022 202%
Unrestricted Restricted ‘total Total
funds tunds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Nursary 520,031 « 520,031 328,500
Catering A07,742 - 407,742 245,014
Lelsuze conire 1,100 - 1,100 3,369
Hire of facikties 107,878 - 107,878 35,544
Trade other 172,294 - 172,204 72,258
Other income " 22,220 223,220 43,547
Shireland Learning Limiled 519,478 - 518,478 1,064,175
1,737,521 22,220 1,759,741 1,792,408

£ Investment income
2022 2021
Unrestricted Restricted Totat Total
funds fungs funda tunds
£ £ £ £
Bank interest receivable 1,491 - 1,491 2,698
1,491 - 1,481 2,698
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7 ExpendHure
2022 2021
Staff costs Promiges  Other costs Total Totel
£ £ £ £ [
Halsing funds:

Dirgct cotts 3,126,932 195,345 854,450 4,276,727 3,436,941

Academy's edusational operations:
Biract costs 16,723,860 1,806,943 2,058,927 22,588,230 168,020,592
Allocated support costs 6,910,523 1,094,232 2,320,272 11,115,027 8,844,128
Teaching achool “ . - - 40,000

28,761,415 3,086,520 5,333,048 37,880,984 30,141,661

8 Expenditure - continued

Net incomef{expenditure) is stated alter charging/(crediling):

2022 2021

£ g

Audiiors' remuneration 18,850 17,00C

Auditors' remuneration for non audit work 5,000 4,000

Depreciation - owned assels 2,436,200 1,698,203

Amortisation - owned assels 6,614 12,553

Operatlng leage rentals 28,288 35,914
§ Charltable activities - acedemy’s educational operations

2022 200

Unrestricled Hestricted Total Total

funds funds funds fundgs

E £ £ £

Direct costs - 22,589,230 22,580,230 18,020,592

Suppon costa - 11,115,027 11,115,027 8,644,128

- 33,704,257 32,704,267 26,664,720

2022 2023
Analysis of support costs £ 4
Pension interest 374,000 251,000
Staff costs 5,536,623 4,836,784
Depraciation 439,827 205,411
Recruliment and suppon 318,761 212,377
Maintenance of premises and aquipment 416,335 488,805
Cleaning 168,199 133,486
Rent and rales 144,087 176,545
Heat and fight 547,792 408,461
Insurance §7,803 51,861
Security 70,388 79,272
Transport 91,667 37,796
Catering 670,744 762,352
Technology costs 531,014 466,266
Bank Interest and chargas 697 728
Other support costs 449,411 341,866
Legal and professicnal {ees 156,553 162,327
Goverpance cosls 1,426 8,670

11,115,027 8,544,128
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10 Trustees' remuneration and banetflis

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has recelved olhar benefits from employment with the academy trust. The
principal and ether stalf frustees only recelve remuneration in respest of services they provide undertaking the roles of princlpal and
staff mambars under their conlracts of employment. The value of trustess’ remuneration and other benefiis was as fallows:

2022 2021

£ E
Sir M Grundy Remuneration 260,000 - 200,000 -
205,000 208,000

During the year ended 31 Augus! 2022 no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2021: £NIf)
11 Staff costs

Group Group Academy Academy

2022 2021 2022 2021

£ £ £ £

Wages and salaries 18,008,551 16,007,028 18873288 15422520
Soclal securlty cosls 1,877,225 1,625,827 1,834,302 1,565,710
Operating coste of defined benefil pension schemes 6,471,705 4,764,055 8,357,678 4,673,609
27,455,481 22,506,910 27,205,248 21.661,839

Agency stall cosis 1,222,076 713,270 1,222,076 713,270
Sialf rastruciuring costs 83,858 5,668 83,858 5,666

28,761,415 23,225,848 28511182 22,380,775

The average number of persons (including senlor menagement leam) employed by the Group and the Trust during the year was as
fottows:

Group Group Academy Acedamy
2022 2021 2022 2021
Teachers {(FTE} 287 (291} 246 {258) 287 {291} 243 [255)
Admin and support (FTE) 445 [208) 372 (264) 445 {245) 363 (255)
Management (FTE) 6 (5 B (B) 6 (5 B {B)

738 (682) 624 (528) 738 (592} 612 [(516)

Tho nimber of employees whose empioyee banelits {excluding employer pension costs) exceaded £60,000 was:

Group Group

2022 2021

No. No.

£60-001 - £70,000 14 g
£70-001 - £80,800 4 3
£80-001 - £80,000 2 3
£80-001 - £100,000 3 2
£116,001 - £120,000 1 1
1 1

£200,001 - £210,000

Key management personnel
The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the Trustees and the executive management {ear as llsted on page 1. The total

ameunt of employse benefits (Including employer penslen contributions) recelved by key managemant persannel for thelr services lo
the Ttrust was recelved by key management parsonne! for thelr services lo the Trust was £881,710 (2021: £871,243}.
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12 Ceniral services

The Group has provided the following central services to [is academies during the year:
* L eadership and management to include sirategy support, a CEQ, FD and HR Director

* Egucational Imarovement and suppert inciuding a curriculum frameworik
* Compliance

* Health ar Satety

* E-Learning Suppott and technology

* Humen resources

* Finance

* Governance Including B company sacretary

* Infernal and axtarnal audit

* All stattory policies and gukiancs for the above areas

‘The Group has charged a fee for thase services for the period on the fofiowing basls:

* Flat percentage of 5% of GAG income

The acluat smounts charged during the year were as follows: 2022 2021
£ g

Shireland Collegiate Academy 484,874 429,292
Thorns Colleglate Academy 258,180 240,888
Holyhead Primary Academy 50,303 47,225
Tamaside Primary Academy 115,111 114,101
‘Wast Hromwich Coflegiate Academy 145,921 95,318
Shireland Technglogy Primary 55,820 40,173
Wallbrosk Prirmary Academy §6,156 44,070
Ligitwoods Primaty Academy 20,053 21,347
Shizeland Blomadical UTC 21,878 -
1,202,404 1032412

1% Trustees” and offlcers’ Insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practics, the acadsmy hae purchased insurance to protect trustees and oHlcers from clalms
arlsing from negligent acts, errors or emissions oceurring whilst on Trust business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,600 on
any one claim and the cost for the period ended 31 August 2022 was E550 (2021: £550). The cost of this Insurance Is included In the

{otal Insurance cosl.

14 Intangible assets

Group and Trust
Computer
software Total
£ £

Coat or vatuation
Al the + September 2021 222,405 222,485
Disposais {219,193) (219,193)
At 31 August 2022 3,302 3,302
Amortisatior
Atthe 1 Septembar 2021 214,276 214,278
Charge for the year 6,614 6,614
Disposals (219,193} (219,183)
At 31 August 2022 1,687 1,697
NBV
Al 31 August 2022 1,606 1,605
At 31 August 2023 B, 218 8,218
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18 Tenglble fixed assets

Group asnd Trust

Long-term Furnliure
leasehoid ang Computer Maotor
property Equipmant sguipment vehicles Totat
£ £ £ £ £

Cost or valuation
At the 1 September 2021 80,260,068 1,792,656 5722519 43,008 87,818,249
Additions 19,140,702 273,549 762,698 - 20,178,949
Dlsposais (727,416}  {4,029,885) (29,008)  (4,786,308)
Transter “
AL 31 August 2022 99,400,771 1,338,788 2,445,331 14,0600 103,198,891
Depreciation
Atthe 1 Septembar 2021 4,788,561 986,813 4,456,073 29,051 10,270,508
Chargs for the year 1,739,845 ?57,805 434,660 2,800 2,435,200
Disposals (727,416}  {4,038,885) (28,005}  (4,756,306)
A1 31 August 2022 6,639,406 517,392 849,847 2,846 7,808,492
NBY
AL 31 Augusi 2022 92,861,365 821,397 1,595,484 11,154 95,289,400
AL 31 August 2021 75,460,808 805,743 1,267,446 13,858 77,547,651

Included within the net book value of Land and Bulldings is Land not depreclated of £3,837,416 {2021: £3,437,416).

The Trust's fransaclions relating 1o Eng and bulidings hcludad:

- The acguisition of the freehoig af 1he Shireland Blomedical UTC which was donated to the Trust by Sandwell Metropolitan Sorugh
Councé &t a value of £17,500,000.

The building and assoclated assets of West Bromwich Colleglate Academy [s accupled by the frust under a 125 year license.

18 Investmants
Shireland Collagiate Academy Trust is the sole member of Shireland Learning Umited ("SLL"), a company limited by
guarantes. SLL iz a company Incorporated in England and Wates (Company reglstration 06052021 ). ‘The principal activily of SLL
Is providing an enfine lsaming environment.

A summary of the resulls and the balance sheet position of SLL for the year ended 31 August 2022 is shown below:

Profit and loss Account 2022 2021
£ £
Turmaver 764,521 1,142,388
Adminlsirative axpenses {764,521} {1,036,608}
Operating profit
- 105,782
Balance Sheet
Current assels 256,367 400,495
Current fabliities {258,367) (408,495)
Represented by
Profit and loss Account b/ - -
Profit for the year - 105,782
Gitt Ald Payment - {105,782)

Members’ Funds

The audi reports for the year ended 31 August 2022 and the year ended 31 August 2021 wera bolh unmedified.
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17 Stock
Group Group Trust Trust
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ £ e £
Steck 49,074 41,424 49,074 41,424
49,074 41,424 48,074 41,424
The abeve slock relates 1o ICT equipment, ICT consumatiles, fuel oll, stationery & resources, catering, and electrical & cleaning.
18 Debtors
Grougp Group Trust Trust
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ £ £ €
Trade debtors 288,989 636,801 43,887 284,007
Prapayments and accrued income 1,371,233 1,630,085 1,367,642 1,623,702
VAT recoverable 461,454 196,860 502,404 268,637
Other debtors 6,642 848 130,363 560
2,128,328 2,467,262 2,044,308 2,177,806
19 Crediors: falling due within one year
Group Group Trust Frust
2022 202t 2022 2021
£ £ £ 4
Trade credilors 140,783 792,426 140,822 565,767
Other taxation and sucial security §07,279 449,227 507,219 436,481
Wapes and saiaries 461,413 433,803 481,413 423,118
Other crediors 222,184 1,724 224,772 1,7
Loana (see note 20) 28,805 18,753 28,805 18,753
Accruals and deferred income 1,130,173 1,159,811 1,096,058 1,053,234
2,490,647 2,855,758 2,398,950 2,510,052
Group Group Trust Trust
2022 2021 2022 2021
Pelerred income S £ |4 £
At 1 Septamber 260,858 680,077 262,855 401,865
Resources deferred 397,846 360,859 311,191 262,855
Amourils released from pravicus periods (360,859} (680,077) {262,855) (401,865)
397,846 360,859 311,11 262,855

Al the balance sheet tate the scademy trust was holding funds of £397,846 recelved In advance for Teaching school funding, {rips,and
trading Income for HA, Finance ,sateguarding, technicians, e-learning and mathsflip. Devolved forimula caplital | Sandwall mentor

funding, Free school grant and Nursery parents

20 Credifors: faliing due after more than one ysar

Group Group Trust Trust

2022 2021 2022 201

£ £ £ £

Loans 141,860 118,031 141,960 118,031
141,860 118,031 141,960 118,031

The Trust was granted Salix Energy Efficlerd Fund (SEEF) loans during the previous year fo suppert energy afficlency related cagpital
axpendiure. The loans provided lo Holyhead Primary Academy, Wallbrook Primary Academy and Shireland Coffeglate Academy are for
a duration of 7 years. The loans provided to Thormes Colleglate Academy and Tameside Primary Academy are for a duration of 6 years.

All loans are provided as interast free oans.
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21 Movement in funds

Restricted general funds

General Annual Gran! {GAG)

Other DIEJEFA grants
Pupil premium
Teachers pay
Teachers pension
Tust Capactly funding
Tutoring programme
Supplementary grant
PE sports grant
CGOVID catch up
Others

Locai authority

Other reatricied profects

Restricted penslon fund

Restricted fixed sssat funds

Tranafer on convarsion

DIEfCapltal grants

Cagphtal axpendliure from GAG

Capltal expenditure from unrestricted funds
Other caplial grants

Other donations

Tolal restricied funds

Unrestricted funda

Totat funds

SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Balence at 1 Galns, Balance at
Soptember Incoming Resources losses and 31 August
2021 Resgurces Expended Transfers 2022

£ £ £ 4 £

413,538 26,011,638 (25,185,012} (863,407} 376,664

- 1,717,697 (1,717,667) - -

" 22,116 (22,116) . .

- 62,4589 (62,488) - .

- 286,371 (R86,371) - -

- 208,692 (208,802) . .

- 327,136 (a27,136) - -

- 82,370 {92,370 - -

. 217,430 (217,430} - -

571,546 818,341 (@16, 465) {9,547 205,875
215,827 1,812,030 (2,008,538} - 15,415
55,081 22,220 12,214) {12,390) 52,647
1,262,092 31,398,437 (31,119,540) {885,344} 655,645
{21,645,000) B (2,358,000 18,930,000 {5,078,000}
(20,386,308) 31,388,437 (33,478,540} 18,044,666 {4,522,355)
65,408,883 17,745,994 {1,985,035) - 81,168,842
2,324,857 1,295,779 40,692 - 9,561,326

1,171,363 “ (21%,178) 865,407 1,823,611
466,979 - {23,748) 8,904 452,135
1,647,175 39,863 {244,818} 21,937 1,464,087
7,548,676 - {17,626} B 7,529,050
78,565,953 14,981,666 {2,441,814) 894,248 86,100,084
58,179,045 50,480,103  (35,920,354) 16,938,504 91,677,698
1,834,268 2,312,201 (2,060,630) (6,509} 2177,026
60,113,313 52,792,394  (37,880,984) 18,930,000 93,854,723

The specific purpeses for which the funds are to be applled as follows:

Rastricted genaral funde comprise all other restricted funds received and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency.
Department of Educalion, or other fundars. These funds are all all used in actordance with the spacific restictions of the individual

grants and funding provided.

Restricted Flxed Asset Funds ars resources which are applied to specific capHal purposes Imposed by the Education and Skilie Funding
Agency, Departmant for Education, or other funders where the asset acquired or created Is held for a speclfic purpose.

Unrestricled income funds rapresent those resources which may be used towards meeling any of the chasitable abjsctives at the

discration of the Trustees.

Under the funding agreemant with the Secretary of Siats, the acaderny trust was not subject te limits on the amount of GAG thal could
be carried forward at 31 August 2022 or 31 August 2021,
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21 Movement in funds - continued

Comparative Information In respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Balance st 1 Gaing, Balance at
September Incoming Hesources fossas and 31 August
2020  Resources Expended Transfers 2021
4 £ £ 4 3
Hestricted genoral funds
Ganeral Annual Grant (GAG) 226,453 20,812,815 (19,826,226) (697,664) 413,538
Cther DIE/EFA grants
Pupl premiues . 1,466,633 (1,466,833} . B
Teachers pay - 201,154 {291,154) - .
Teachers penslon . 724,083 (721,083} - -
COVID cach up - 280,715 {280,719} - -
Othors 474,160 1,066,914 (916,878} 12,353 577,548
Local authority 65,313 1,764,438 (1,592,012} {21,810) 215,827
Other restricted projects 51,9538 43,547 (18,988} {21,478) 55,081
817,924 26,387,668  (25,214,904) {728,5986) 1,262,002
Restricted pengion fund (14,339,000) (3,245,000) (1,526,000}  (2,539,000) (21,640,000)

{13,521,078) 23,142,668 (26,740,904}  (3,267,596) (20,386,808}

Restrictad fixed psset funds

‘Transfer on conversion 56,427,408 10,265,940 (1,284,968} - 65,406,883
DE/Capital grants 1,591,282 744,851 {11,386} - 2,324,857
Gaplal expenditure fromn GAG 598,388 - {124,668) 697,664 1,174,383
Caphat expendliure from uarestricted funds 559,825 - (134,078} 41,232 466,979
Other capiial granis 1,329,202 474,630 (156,657} . 1,647,176
Other donations 64,189 7,482,487 - - 7,546,676

60,570,605 18,968,008 {1,741,756) 738,806 78,565,953
Total restricted funds 47,048,728 42,110,676 (20,452,660}  (2,628,700) 58,179,045
Unrestricted funds 1,662,328 2,071,240 {1,689,001) {14,300} 1,934,268
Total funds 48,612,066 44,181,916 {30,141 ,E61) {2,530,000) 60,113,313
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21 Movement In funds - continueed

Anglysis by Fund balance
Fund balances al 31 August 2022 were aflocated as follows: 2022 2021
£ £
Shireland Collegiate Academy 720,788 801,724
Thorns Collegiate Academy 147,413 149,121
Heiyhead Primary Academy 79,677 203,368
Tamsside Primary Academy 157,118 371,307
West Bromwich Colleglate Academy 234,028 258,386
Shiretand Technology Primary 168,767 55,477
Wallbrook Primary Academy 230,009 95,913
Ughtwoods Primary Academy 148,907 76,592
Shireland Blomedical UTC {134,781} .
Central services 1,091,736 1,083,472
Total before fixed assels and penalon reserve 2,832,670 3,196,360
Restricted fixed asset fund 96,100,053 78,565,953
Pension reserve (5.078,000)  {21,648,000)
Total 83,854,723 60,113,313

The Shireland Biomedical UTC deficlt is due fo low student numbers. The Trusi has worked with Baker Dearing and the ESFA to
change the delvery strutture from a year 9 - 13 model to a year 7 - 13 model. We are anticipating with this change we will attract the
students' numbaers to ensure a surplus budget within the next 3 years.

Astalysls of academies by coat Teaching and
sducationg! OGther

support gupport staff  Educational
staff costs costs suppltes
£ £ £
Shiraland Collegiate Academy 7,634,678 1.569,723 806,309
Thorns Colleglate Academy 8,797,563 1,063,468 426,987
Holyhead Primary Academy 728,856 358,847 164,319
Tameside Primary Academy 1,682,081 673,540 263,650
West Broenwich Collegiate Academy 2,011,517 631,980 378,033
Shiretand Technology Primary 6BE,126 286,024 109,852
Wallbrook Primary Academy 931,250 360,587 174,014
Lightwoods Primary Academy 1,279,451 721,783 206,228
Shirelarsd Biomedical UTC 444,643 108,183 75,873
Cantral sarvices 459,885 602,223 {333.283)

18,655,831 6,376,184 2,272,002

Other costs
{excluding Total Tatal
depraciation;} 2022 2021
£ £ £
Shireland Collegiate Academy 1,280,331 11,301,042 10,285,232
Thorns CoYteglate Academy 724,460 6,012,478 5,585,465
Haolyhead Primary Academy 181,016 1,432,638 1,336,284
Tameside Primary Academy 468,005 3,088,276 2,940,427
West Bromwich Collegiate Academy 480,444 3,601,974 2,361,161
Shiretand Technology Primary 208,225 1,290,227 1,052,366
Waklbrook Primary Academy 256,703 1,722,564 1,194,725
Lightwoods Primary Acadermy 373,543 2,581,015 503,531
Shireland Biomedical UTC 196,612 825,317 -
Ceniral services 176,337 805,162 781,860

4356676 32,660,693 26,040,051
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22 Analysls of net assets between funds

Fixed assels
Cirrant assols
Current kabilities
Long tarm llablities
Panslon Hlabllity

Fixed assels
Current assels
Current kabilies
Long term liabllities
Pension ltability

SHIRELAND COLLEGIATE ACARDEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Restricted Total
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asssis funds
fund fund fund 2022
£ £ € £
- - 85,291,004 05,201,004
2,600,876 2,864,401 £08,049 6,274,326
(281,891}  (2,208,756) - {2,490,647)
(141,960} . . {141,960)
- (5,078,000} - {5,076,000)
2,177,025 (4,422,355) 96,100,069  §3,684,723
Restricted Total
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed assels funds
fund fund fund 2021
£ £ £ £
- - 71,555,870 77,855,870
3,132,155 3,037,882 1,010,083 7,180,230
(1,078,858}  (1,775,800) - (2,855,756)
{118,031) - - {118,031)
- (21,648,000) - (21,549,000)
1,834,268 (20,366,908} 78,566,953 60,113,313
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23 Reconciliation of net Incoms to net cash How from operating activities
2022 2021
g £
Net incarme for the year {as per Statemant of financlal activilies} 14,811,410 14,040,255
Adjustments for:
Amortisafion 6,614 12,663
Beprectalion 2,435,200 1,890,203
Capital grants from DIE and other capltal Incoma {1,335,672) (1,203,813}
Interest recelvable {1,401} (2,698)
Defined benelit pension scheme cost less contributions payabie 1,885,000 1,277,000
Defined beneflt pension scheme fnance cost 374,000 248,000
Incresse In stocks (7,650) {12,339)
Decreese in debtars 337,934 {366,418}
Decrease In creditors {375,161) B42,829
Funds inherited on conversion - (7,184,310}
Nt cash provided by operating activities 18,236,185 8,351,262
24 Cash flows from financing activities
2022 2021
g £
Cash Inflows from new borrowing 58,877 139,169
Repayments of borrowing {24,897} {2,385)
Net cash provided by financing activities 33,880 135,784
25 Creh flows from investing activities
2022 2021
£ £
Dividents, Interest and rents from investmerits 1,481 2,688
Purchase of tanglble lixed assets {net ol donated assets) {2,430,055)  (1,976,763)
Donated fixed assets (17,745,884} {7.4B2,487)
Capita geanis from DIE Group 1,335,612 1,203,813
Net cash provided by Investing activities (18,839,786)  (B,252,738)
25 Anabyals of cash and cash equlvatents
2022 2021
£ £
Cash In hand and at bank - 2,625,423
Notice geposils 1,313,569 2,046,121
1,313,559 4,671,644
27 Analysls of changes In net funds
Nar: cash
At /821 Caash fiow chenges At 31/8/22
£ £ £ £
Cash and cash equivalents 4,671,544 1575,621) - 4,005,623
4,671,544 {575.621) - 4,085,023
Loans falling due within one year {18,753} {10,052) - {28,805)
Loans falling due after more than one year (118,031) {23,929) - (141,860)
4,534,760 {609,601) “ 3,925,168
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26 Capital commitmenis Group Group Academy Academy
2022 202 2022 2021

£ £ £ e

Contracted faz, but not provided in the financlal statements 45,944 986,932 45,944 966,832

29 Penslon and similar obligations

The Frust's employess belong to two prineipal pension schemes: the Teacher's Pension Scheme for England and Wales {TPS) for
academic and refated staff, end the Local Government Penslon Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which Is managed by Sandwaell
MBC. Both are Muli-employer Defined Benelit Pension Schemes.

‘The latest acluaral vakation of the TPS related 1o the perlad ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2419.
Contributions amounting 1o £333,896 were payable to the schames a1 31 August 2022 (2021: £313,862) and are included within

Teachers® penslon schems
Introduction
The Teachers' Pension Schame (TPS) Is a statutory, contributory, dafinad banefit scheme, governed by the Taachers' Pengion Scheme

Regulations 2014. Membership Is automatic for teachers in academles. All teachers have the oplion o opt-out of the TPS following
enraiment,

“the TFS s an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contelbutions, as a percentage of salary - these
contributions are credited 1o the Exchaquer. Retiremant and other pensicn benefils are paid by public funds provided by Parliarment.

Vatuation of the teachers’ pension scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuzanal review of the TPS In accordance with the Public
Service Penslons {Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review Is to apaclfy
the lgvel of future contributions, Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of
benefils and many other laclors. The latest aciuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016 and in accordance with
the Public Senvice Penslons (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap} Directlons 2044. The valuation report was published by the
Dapartment for Education on 5 March 2019, The key elements of the valuation are:

- employsr contribution fates set at 23.68% of penslonabla pay {inciuding a 0.08% adminisiration lavy);

- total scheme Fabitilies (pensions currently n payment and the astimated cost of future benefits) far senvice o the sfiective date o!
218,100 miflon and notional asssis {estimated fulure contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of
£188,160 mition, ghing & notional past service defici of £22,000 mifflon;

- the SCAPE rate, sel by HMT, Is used to delermine the notional Investment return. The current SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate
of GPI. assumed real rats of return |s 2.4% In excess of prices and 2% In excess of sarnings. The rate of real earnings growth Is
assumed io be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is dus to be implemented from 1 April 2024.

The pension costs paig to TPS In the perlod amounted to £2,410,655 (2021; £2,333,025).

A copy of tha valuation repont and supporting dotmentation is on the Teachers” Penglons webshe,

Under the daflnitions set out In FRS 102, the TPS s an unfunded mull-employer pension schame. The T trust has accounted for Its

contribations to the scheme as If It were a defined contribulion scheme. The Trust has sst out above the information avaliable on the
scheme.
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25 Penslon and simitar obligations - continued

The LGPS is a funded defined-beneiit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The total contrbution made
for the perlod ended 31 August 2022 was £1,831,000 (2021: £4,400,000), of which emplayer's contributions fotalled £1,478,000 (2021:
£1,120,000}, and employaes' contributions totaffed £353,000 (2021: £280,000}, The agreed contribution rates for futura years are 10.7%
for amployers and & range of 5.5% o 12.5% for empioyees.

Parllament has apread, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the svent of academy trust closure,
outstanding Local Government Pension Schems Hablities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantes came Inic
force on 18 July 2013,

It should be noted thal the actuary’s 31 August 2022 FRE102 valuation of the scheme's llablities takes into account tha anticipated
Penslons Increase Order which Is axpected o apply from 1 April 2023. As the P1 Order each Apri} Is linked to the CP) Inflation for the
year to the preceding Sepiember, this is viewed as a constructive obligation as at the Academy Trust's year end. Ordinary the impact Is
minimai and dealt with as an experlence {oss In the year that the Pl Qrder tekes effect. Given the currently high levels of GPI inflation,
however (CF! roze by 10.1% 1o September 2022) the estimated Impact has bean Incorporated into the 31 August 2022 valuation by the
scheme’s actuary and Is allowed for in the experionce loss below.

The amounts recognised in the Balanca Sheet are as loflows:

Defined heneflt pension
plans
2022 2021
£ £
Prezent valus of oblgations {23,286,0000  (38,735,000)
Fair velee of plan assets 18,208,000 17,086,000

{5,076,000)  {21,548,000)

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:

Detined bensfit ponsion
plans
2022 20
£ g
Current service costs {3,463,000)  ({2,385,000)
Net Interest fzom net defined benelit assetliability (374,000} {251,000)

{3,837,000) (2,648,000}

Actual return on plan assets {546,000} 2,366,000

Changes In the preseni vaius of the defend bensfit obligation are as follows:
Dafined bene!lt pension

plans
2022 2021
£ £
Defined benefit obfigation - brought forward 38,735,000 26,474,000
Gonvarsion of academy trusts - 4,676,000
Current servics cost 8,463,000 2,385,600
Contributions by schema panlicipants 353,000 280,000
Interesi cost 869,000 470,000
Actuarial (gains)/iosses {18,771,000% 4,684,000
Beneflts paid {163,000} (238,000}

23,286,000 58,735,000
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29 Pension and simlitar obligetions - continued

Changes In the fair value of the Group's shere ot scherme assets are as follows:

Defined benefit panslon
plans
2022 2021
£ £
Fair value of scheme assets - brought forward 17,086,000 12,135,000
Conversion of academy trusts - 1,425,000
Interest income 295,000 218,000
Actuarial gains {841,000} 2,145,000
Employer contributions 1,478,000 1,120,000
Employee confributions 253,000 280,000
Beneilts pald (163,000) (238,000)

18,208,000 17,066,000

“The amounts recognised In other recognised gains and losses are as follows:
Defined benefit pension

plans
2022 2021
£ £
Actuarial gains/{losses) 18,930,000 {2,638,000)

18,830,000 (2,639,000}

The major categories ol scheme assets are as follows:
Defined bensflt pension

plans

2022 2021

|4 £

Equities 12,198,360 10,408,000
Gilts 3,823,680 1,412,000
Caorporate bonds - 1,048,000
Properly 1,466,640 1,200,000
Cash and other lquid assets 728,320 628,000
Other - 2,381,000

18,208,000 17,086,000

Principa! actuadal assumptians at the balance sheel date (expressed as welghted averages):

2022 2021
Discount rate 4.26% +.65%
Fulure salary increases £.05% 3.85%
Fulure pension ingreases (CPI) 3.05% 2.85%

The current montality assumptions Include sufficient allawance for future knprovements In mortality rates. The assumed life expeclations
on refirement age 65 are:

At 3% August At 31 August

2022 2021
Rutiring today
Males 21.2 216
Females R3.6 24.0
Raliting In 20 years
Males 22.9 234
Famales 25.4 268
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25 Penston and similar obiigations - continued
Sensitivity analysls as at 31 August 2022

The sensliivities regarding the principal assumpticns used to measure the scheme #abililies are as follows;

2022 2021

£000 £000

Discount rate +0.1% 591 1.065
Discoum rate -0.1% (591} {1,066}
1 year Increasa In member ite expectancy {a31) {1,836}
1 year decreass In member life expactancy 931 1,670
Salary increase mate +0.1% (114} (126)
Safery Increase rate -0.1% 114 125

30 Leasing agreements
Mintmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:

Group Group Academy Academy

2022 2021 2022 2021

£ £ g £

Within one year 18,034 37,503 18,034 37,563
Between one and live years 21,607 80,237 21,607 89,237
40,641 136,740 40,651 136,740

31 Related party disclosurea

Owing to the nalure of the academy trust's operations and the compaosition of the board ot trustees being drawn from tocal public and
private seclor srganisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trust has an Interest. All transactions invalving
such organisations are conducted at arm's length and in eccordance with the frust's financial reguigtions, the Acedemies Financlal
Handbook and normal procurament procedures.

K Grundy. wife of M Grundy, a trustes, is emplayed by the academy trust as Primary Director of Education, K Grundy's appointment
was mede in opan competilion and M Grundy was aot Involvad In the decision-making process regarding appalntment. K Grundy Is paid
within: the nermal pay scale for her role and receives no speclal treatment as a result of her relationship to a trustee.

T Grundy, son of M Grundy, a trustes, Is empioyed by the academy trust as a Head of DT. T Grundy's appoinimant was made in open
competition and M Grundy was not involved in the daclslon-making process regerding appointment. T Grundy is palg within the normat
pay scale for her role and recelves no spedial treaiment as a result of her relationship o a truslee.

E Tonks, child of spouse of M Grundy, a iruslee, is employed by the acedemy trust as a support staff member, E Tonks' appointment
was made in open competition and M Grundy was not involved in the decision-making process regarding appointment. E Tonks Is pald
within the normal pay scale for her role and receives no speciil] ireaiment as a result of her relationship to a trustee.

During the year, the {rust made payments to Ells Savell-Boss Limlted for safeguarding services totaling £14,307 (2021: £14,307). The
awnar of this business, £ Savell-Bogs, Is the slster of A Savell-Boss, a trusteas, as at the 31 August 2022 £nil {2021; gnil} was
outstanding.

Shireland Collegiate Acedemy Trust s the sofs member of Shirefand Learning Elmlted {SLL), a company incorporated in England
{registration no. 06052021}, As reporied in the audited accounts for the year ended 31 August 2022, SLL made & proflt of £nf {2021
£105,782y, There Is no profi to git back to the Trust for use across the academies in fine with SLL Agicles of Association. Asgociation.

The Trust hes recaivad Income of £10,000 (2621: £nll) for the release of e skarehoksing in Coscole (& company by which the academy
trust owned 14.7% of the share capital), No further incore or expenditure has exchanged hands.

The trust made the fransactions at arm’s length and in accordance with its financial regulations, In entering into the transaclions, the
trus! has compiied with the requirements of the ESFA's Academles Financiai Handbcook. There were no other related party
transactions for the year ended 31 August 2022 othar than eertain Trusiees' remuneration and sxpensas already disclosed in note 7.

32 Members' liabiflity
Each member of the charitable company undertakes te coniribute to the assels of the company in the event of it being wound up while
he/she is & membar, or within one year alter he/she ceases to be a membar, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for
the debls and Eabilities contracted helore he/she ceases 10 be a member.
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33 Agenoy arrangemantsa

The Trust distribites 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. In the accounting period ending 31 Augus) 2022, the Trust
rocolved R48,749 (2021 £36,914) and disbursed £20,228 (2021: £83,786} from the fund, The amount remalning unspent at the 31
August 2022 Is £54,047 (2021: £34,527), which Is being carded forward.

34 New ecademios Joining the Trust

On 1 April 2022 the Shirlefand Biomedicai UTC converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and aff the operations and
assels and Fabilites were transferred to Shireland Collegiate Academy Trust from the Sandwelt Metropolitan Borough Gouncil Locat
Authority for £nil consideration,

The transler has been acceunted for as & combination that is i substance a glit. The assets and lablities transferred were valued al
thelr falr vatue and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings with & corresponding net amount fecognised as a
net galn In the Statamant of Financlal Activities as Transters inla the Trust.

Lightwoods Piimary School translerred In during the year ended 31 Auguet 2021. However, further revenue funds, not
naotifted/conlirmed as at approval of the 2021 financlal statements have since besn recleved and are recognised as transferred in the
current year as detailed below.

The following table sets ocut the fair values of the identiflable assets and Hablities transferred and an analysls of thelr recegnition In the

SOFA,
Unrestricted Restricted Festricted

funds genersl  fixed asset
funds funds Total
Shireland Blemedical UTC £ £ £ £
Tangibie fixed assets:
- Freehold proparty - - 17,600,000 17,500,000
~ Furnifure and equipment . - 84,408 84,408
- Compuier equipment - - 161,585 161,585
Revenue funds lransferred 12,183 - . 12,183
12,183 - 17,745,984 17,768,477

Lightwoods Primary Schaool
Tanglble flxed asseis:
- Freghoid property - - - -
- Furniture and equlpment . - - .
« Computer eguipment - - - -
Revenusg lunds transferred 308,087 - - 308,087

308,087 - - 208,087
Total
Tangible fixed agsets:
~ Freshold proparty - . 17,500,000 17,500,000
« Furniture and equipment - - 84,409 84,408
- Computer egulpment - - 161,585 161,565
fAevenue funds transferred 828,270 - - 320,270

320,270 - 17,745,994 18,086,264
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35 Comparative Consolidated Statement of income & Expenditure - year ended 31 August 20621

Restricted 2020121 2019/20

Unrestricted Hestricted  fixed asset Tolat Total
funds funds funds funds funds

£ £ £ |3 £

Incoms and endowments from

Donations and capital grants 106,828 - 8,702,067 8,808,856 1,455,458
Tranafers into the Trus! 163,370 {3,245,000) 10,285,941 7,184,311 18,045,085
Charliable activilles

- Educationat operations . - 26,304,121 - 26,304,121 21,087,013

- Teaching schools - 40,000 - 40,000 38,500
Other trading activities 1,798,343 43,547 - 1,841,85C 1,606,566
Invesiment income 2,608 - - 2,698 12,484
Total income 2,071,240 23,142,668 18,968,008 44,181,916 39,334,104
Expendlture an
Ralsing funds 889,004 1,841,000 136,540 3,438,841 2,450,806
Charitable activitles

- Educational operalions - 25,088,904 1,574,816 26,664,720 22,396,213
Teaching schools - 40,000 - 43,000 38,800
Total expenditure 1,688,001 26,740,004 1,711,756 30,141,661 24,925,518
Net income/{sxpenditure) 382,239 {3,598,236) 17,266,252 14,040,255 14,408,585
‘Translers batwoen funds (10,300} (728,588} 138,846 . -
Other recognised gainsi{losses):
Actuarial gains/{losses) on delined

benefit pension schemes - {2,539,000} - {2,539,000) (2,036,600)
Net movament in funds 871,938 (6,865,832) 17,995,148 11,501,255 12,372,585
Reconciilation of funds
Totai funds brought forward 1,562,328  (13,521,676) 60,570,805 48,612,058 36,238,473
Total funds carrled forward 1,934,268  (20,386,808) 78,565,953 80,113,313 48,612,058

Page (56)



